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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
($ in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
September 30, December 31,
2021 2020

ASSETS:
Mortgage-backed securities, at fair value (includes pledged assetS,41%5,198

and $3,719,906 respectively) $ 5,601,423 $ 3,726,895
U.S. Treasury Notes, at fair value (includes pledged asset28f3R7and $0, respectively) 37,409 -
Cash and cash equivalents 424,133 220,143
Restricted cash 51,111 79,363
Accrued interest receivable 15,241 9,721
Derivative assets 47,383 20,999
Receivable for securities sold, pledged to counterparties - 414
Other assets 442 516
Total Assets $ 6,177,142 $ 4,058,051
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Repurchase agreements $ 5,213,869 $ 3,595,586
Payable for unsettled securities purchased 180,619 -
Dividends payable 9,991 4,970
Derivative liabilities 10,288 33,227
Accrued interest payable 753 1,157
Due to affiliates 935 632
Other liabilities 30,058 7,188
Total Liabilities 5,446,513 3,642,760
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, 8.01par value;100,000,00Ghares authorized; no shares issued

and outstanding as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 - -
Common Stock,$01 par value;500,000,00Ghares authorized,153,318,351

shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2021 &ttJ073,317shares issued

and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 1,533 761
Additional paid-in capital 767,286 432,524
Accumulated deficit (38,190) (17,994)
Total Stockholders' Equity 730,629 415,291
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 6,177,142 $ 4,058,051

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
($ in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30,

2021 2020 2021 2020

Interest income $ 90,279 $ 90,152 $ 34,169 $ 27,223
Interest expense (5,067) (23,045) (1,570) (2,043)
Net interest income 85,212 67,107 32,599 25,180
Realized (losses) gains on mortgage-backed securities (3,068) (24,522) 2,977 498
Unrealized (losses) gains on mortgage-backed securities (107,386) 38,440 (11,239) 1,168
Gains (losses) on derivative and other hedging instruments 15,932 (87,630) 5,375 4,079
Net portfolio (loss) income (9,310) (6,605) 29,712 30,925
Expenses:

Management fees 5,569 3,897 2,156 1,252
Allocated overhead 1,189 1,072 390 377
Accrued incentive compensation 884 (117) 259 158
Directors' fees and liability insurance 874 750 279 242
Audit, legal and other professional fees 832 841 212 240
Direct REIT operating expenses 1,024 852 309 406
Other administrative 514 451 69 174
Total expenses 10,886 7,746 3,674 2,849
Net (loss) income $ (20,196)$ (14,351)$ 26,038 $ 28,076
Basic net (loss) income per share $ (0.19)% 0.22)$ 0.20 $ 0.42
Diluted net (loss) income per share $ 0.19)$ 0.22)$ 020 $ 0.42
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 105,305,772 66,014,379 128,587,347 67,301,901
Dividends declared per common share $ 0.585 $ 0.595 $ 0.195 $ 0.190

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Unaudited)
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
(in thousands)

Additional Retained
Common Stock Paid-in Earnings
Shares Par Value Capital (Deficit) Total
Balances, January 1, 2020 63,062 $ 631 $ 414,998 $ (20,122)$ 395,507
Net loss - - - (91,199) (91,199)
Cash dividends declared - - (15,670) - (15,670)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 3,171 31 19,416 - 19,447
Stock based awards and amortization 4 - 59 - 59
Balances, March 31, 2020 66,237 $ 662 $ 418,803 $ (111,321)$ 308,144
Net income - - - 48,772 48,772
Cash dividends declared - - (10,935) - (10,935)
Stock based awards and amortization 4 - 55 - 55
Shares repurchased and retired (20) - (68) - (68)
Balances, June 30, 2020 66,221 $ 662 $ 407,855 $ (62,549)$ 345,968
Net income - - - 28,076 28,076
Cash dividends declared - - (12,920) - (12,920)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 3,073 31 15,535 - 15,566
Stock based awards and amortization 2 - 51 - 51
Balances, September 30, 2020 69,296 $ 693 $ 410,521 $ (34,473)$ 376,741
Balances, January 1, 2021 76,073 $ 761 $ 432,524 $ (17,994)$ 415,291
Net loss - - - (29,369) (29,369)
Cash dividends declared - - (17,226) - (17,226)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 18,248 182 96,726 - 96,908
Stock based awards and amortization 90 1 571 - 572
Balances, March 31, 2021 94,411 $ 944 $ 512,595 $ (47,363)$ 466,176
Net loss - - - (16,865) (16,865)
Cash dividends declared - - (20,416) - (20,416)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 23,087 231 124,515 - 124,746
Stock based awards and amortization 2 - 180 - 180
Balances, June 30, 2021 117,500 $ 1,175 $ 616,874 $ (64,228)$ 553,821
Net income - - - 26,038 26,038
Cash dividends declared - - (26,420) - (26,420)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 35,818 358 176,649 - 177,007
Stock based awards and amortization - - 183 - 183
Balances, September 30, 2021 153,318 $ 1,533 $ 767,286 $ (38,190)$ 730,629

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

($ in thousands)

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (20,196)$ (14,351)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Stock based compensation 612 167
Realized and unrealized losses (gains) on mortgage-backed securities 110,423 (13,918)
Unrealized losses on U.S. Treasury Notes 31 -
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on derivative instruments (22,180) 67,744
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable (5,449) 2,137
Other assets 74 (533)
Accrued interest payable (404) (10,349)
Other liabilities (2,031) 16
Due to (from) affiliates 303 (32)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 61,183 30,881
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
From mortgage-backed securities investments:
Purchases (4,816,301) (2,898,616)
Sales 2,598,893 2,692,230
Principal repayments 413,005 384,314
Purchases of U.S. Treasury Notes (37,440) -
Net payments on reverse repurchase agreements - 30
Net proceeds from (payments on) derivative instruments (1,228) (68,223)
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,843,071) 109,735
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from repurchase agreements 22,995,280 27,995,556
Principal payments on repurchase agreements (21,376,997) (28,162,359)
Cash dividends (59,019) (40,065)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 398,661 35,013
Shares withheld from employee stock awards for payment of taxes (299) (70)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,957,626 (171,925)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH 175,738 (31,309)
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, beginning of the period 299,506 278,655
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, end of the period $ 475,244 $ 247,346
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 5,471 $ 33,395
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Securities acquired settled in later period $ 180,619 $ 113,653

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLANDCAPITAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organizationand Business Description

Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (“Orchid” or the “Company”),was incorporatedin Maryland on August 17, 2010 forthe
and pyapeskdacleasiaged investment portfolio consisting of residentialmortgage-backedsecurities (“RMBS”). From
MASHRAZALIOTE013, Orchid was a wholly owned subsidiary of Bimini Capital Management,Inc. (“Bimini”). Orchid began
Dhsrabhbes 04, 2010 (the date of commencementof operations). From incorporationthrough November24, 2010, Orchid’s
Quly fieéidgdiance of common stock to Bimini.

On January 23, 2020, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “January 2020 Equity Distribution
thred\gikemgRits willsuant to which the Company could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate a?fg,00@0H0
of shares of the Company’s common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately
negetiéteshs. The Company issued a totaBgif70,727shares under the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for
gross proceeds ofipproximately 9.8 million, and néggregatels of approximatéB;4million, after commissions and fees, prior
its termination in August 2020. to

On August 4, 2020, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August 2020 Equity Distribution
fourASHeSBIHS) piitduant to which the Company could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate albOHAQOBDF
shares of the Company’s common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately
negebiatieshs. The Company issued a totaR@f493,65Ghares under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for
gross proceeds ofipproximately 850.0million, and néggF6€aéeds of approximatdi7Hmillion, after commissions and fees,
its termination in June 2021. prior to

On January 20, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting Agreement”)
MorwathSeRurities LLC (“J.P. Morgan”), relating to the offer and7s60¢d#0Ghares of the Company’s common stock. J.P.
Morgan purchased the shares of the Company’s common stock from the Company pursuantto the January 2021
Wpeeamieiiing $.20per share. In addition, the Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional
1,140,000shares of the Company’s common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on
21, 2021 JAWeaElbsing of the offering,@80,000shares of the Company’s common stock occurred on January 25, 2021, with
proceeds to the Company of approximated§.3million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement™”) with
relatid}s Margasffer and sale000,000shares of the Company’s common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of the
Company’s common stock from the Company pursuant to the March 2021 Underwriting Agreemgpensifare. In addition, the
Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an additj2@8]000shares of the Company’s common stock
the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on March 3, Z021. The closing of theSy2f0ia80shares
of the Company’s common stock occurred on March 5, 2021, with proceeds to the Company of apprdatellidh, net of
offering expenses.

On June 22, 2021, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution
saled\ggenmmgiirdunititdomhich the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate ardbQ;08G0bf
shares of the Company’s common stock in transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately
negotiated
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transactions. Through September 30, 2021, the Company issued a tetd]®#8,33&hares under the June 2021 Equity
Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximatl¢ $million, and net proésedlusiaapproximat@ly7$million, after
commissions and fees. Subsequent to September 30, 2021 and through October 28, 2021, the Company issued %,83&)998
shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approx3tatelitifon, and net
proceeds of approximatel38.4million, after commissions and fees.

COVID-19 Impact

Beginning in mid-March 2020, the global pandemicassociatedwith the novel coronavirus(“COVID-19")and related
condiEiviybigan to impact our financial position andresults of operations. As a result of the economic, health and market
yeneBhroesiiD-19, the Agency RMBS marketexperienced severe dislocations. This resultedin falling prices of our assets
anldngredsedrom our repurchase agreement lenders, resulting in material adverse effectson our resultsof operationsand to
eundiniicial

The Agency RMBS marketlargely stabilizedafter the U.S. Federal Reserve (the “Fed”) announcedon March 23, 2020
purdhadiwenly RMBSand U.S. Treasuries in the amounts needed to support smoothmarket functioning.As of September
BAvea¥delyaatisfied all margin calls. The RMBS marketcontinues to react to the pandemicand the various measuresput in
plalsHige the market. To the extent the financial or mortgagemarkets do not respond favorably to any of these actions,or such
AP dfonas intended, our business, results of operations and financial condition may continueto be materiallyadversely
affewedh the Company cannot estimatethe length or gravity of the impactof the COVID-19pandemic at this time, it may
haveséenatfiiedn the Company’sresults of future operations,financial position, and liquidity.

Basis of Presentationand Use of Estimates

The accompanyingunaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordancewith accountingprinciples generally
in theageptedStates (“GAAP”)for interim financial informationand with the instructionsto Form 10-Qand Article 8 of
Reaplaiigsl$; ey do not includeall of the information and footnotesrequired by GAAP for complete financialstatements.
Hdihegepininnalf adjustments(consistingof normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been
pludddg results for the nine andthree month period ended September 30, 2021 are not necessarilyindicative of the results
thpedrenferthe year ending December31, 2021.

The balance sheet at December 31, 2020 hasbeen derivedfrom the audited financial statements at that datebut does not
of tHaghfdemBtionand footnotesrequired by GAAP forcomplete financialstatements. For furtherinformation, refer to the
§tnearai@lts and footnotesthereto includedin the Company’s Annual Reporton Form 10-Kfor the yearended December31,
2020.

The preparationof financial statements in conformitywith GA APrequires management to make estimatesand
the 1agsoimpLions tnt affassets and liabilities and disclosureof contingentassets and liabilitiesat the dateof the financial
sheteEpiednchounts of revenues and expensesduring the reporting period. Actualresults coulddiffer from those estimates.
dibaificant estimates affecting theaccompanying financial statements are the fairvalues of RMBS and derivatives.
Meragenaeas believsamptionsunderlying the financial statements are reasonablebased on the informationavailable as of
September 30,

Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”)

We obtain interests in VIEs through our investments in mortgage-backed securities. Our interests in these VIEs are
natupassiveaté not expected to result in us obtaining a controlling financial interestin these VIEs in the future. As a
EeTY6] WatEeHRE VIEs and we account for our interest in these VIEs as mortgage-backed securities. See Note 2 for
adkditioaabn regarding our investments in mortgage-backed securities. Our maximum exposure to loss for these VIEs is
thdww@oFing mortgage-backed securities.



Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Cash and cash equivalentsinclude cash on depositwith financialinstitutions and highly liquid investmentswith
threeriginahsvitiaities ee time of purchase. Restricted cash includescash pledgedas collateral for repurchaseagreements

BBereiRIgs, and interestrate swaps and other derivative instruments.

The followingtable providesa reconciliationof cash, cash equivalents,and restricted cash reportedwithin the statement
posigbiifieiah to the total of the same such amountsshown in the statementof cash flows.

(in thousands)

September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 424133 $ 220,143
Restricted cash 51,111 79,363
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 475,244 $ 299,506

The Companymaintains cash balancesat three banks and excess marginon account with two exchange clearingmembers.
baladdetimes; exceed federallyinsured limits. The Companyhas not experienced any losses related to these balances. The
Pr¢ysik Insurance Corporationinsures eligibleaccounts up to $250,000per depositorat each financialinstitution. Restricted
Bashinces areuninsured, but are heldin separate customer accountsthat are segregated from the general fundsof the
comprrppiiynleninsured balances to only large, well-known banks and exchange clearingmembers and believes thatit is
BRyesipAsAddt credit riskon cash andcash equivalentsor restrictedcash balances.

Mortgage-BackedSecurities and U.S. Treasury Notes

The Companyinvests primarilyin mortgage pass-through (“PT”) residentialmortgage backed (“RMBS”)and
obligalisterelizhiowayghigatesissued by Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae or Ginnie Mae, interest-only (“I0”) securitiesand inverse
only (“II0”)securitiBé@gstesenting interest in or obligations backed by pools of RMBS. We refer to RMBS and CMOs as
FFRMBS. e 110 securities as structured RMBS. The Company also investsin U.S. Treasury Notes, primarily to satisfy
fedlateralents of derivative counterparties. The Company has elected to account for its investment in RMBS and U.S.
iR e Ngtesalue option. Electing the fair value option requires the Company to record changes in fair value in the
siséeatiiispfvhich, in management’s view, more appropriately reflects the results of our operations for a particular reporting
peeisisbagtdnt with the underlying economics and how the portfolio is managed.

The Companyrecords securitiestransactionson the tradedate. Security purchases that have not settled as of the balance
are isl@addalen the portfoliobalance withan offsettingliability recorded, whereas securitiessold that have not settled as of the
BaéaeRite are removed fromthe portfoliobalance withan offsettingreceivable recorded.

Fair valueis defined as the pricethat would be received to sell the asset orpaid to transferthe liabilityin an orderly
betvEdSAGAI%Bt participantsat the measurementdate. The fairvalue measurementassumes that the transaction to sell the
asaedfer the liability either occursin the principalmarket forthe asset or liability, orin the absenceof a principalmarket,
adourtipébegnasiket for the assetor liability. Estimatedfair valuesfor RMBS are based on independentpricing sources
Bhgker fiBiRakhen available. Estimated fair values for U.S. Treasury Notes are based on quoted prices foridentical assets in
ashikets.

Income on PT RMBS securities and U.S. Treasury Notesis based on the stated interestrate of thesecurity. Premiumsor
pres@ificatths date of purchase are not amortized. Premium lostand discountaccretion resulting from monthlyprincipal
FepRyreants afealizedgains (losses)on RMBS in the statementsof operations. For 10 securities, the income is accrued based

earifyéng valueand the effectiveyield. The difference between incomeaccrued and the interestreceived onthe securityis

characterizedas
7



a return of investmentand serves to reduce the asset’s carrying value. At each reportingdate, the effective yieldis adjusted
fopsnecideorting periods based on the new estimateof prepaymentsand the contractualterms of the security. For 11O
8efabitiN@Syieldand income recognitioncalculations also take into accountthe index value applicableto the security. Changes
ot fRiviBSwhuring each reporting period are recorded in earnings and reportedas unrealizedgains orlosses onmortgage-
hackedseamibisyingstatementsof operations.

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

The Companyuses derivativeand other hedging instrumentsto manage interest rate risk, facilitate asset/liability
mansigeteghes axfosures, and it may continue to do so in thefuture. The principalinstruments that the Company has used to
d@atRy Note (“T-Note”), Fed Funds and Eurodollarfutures contracts,short positionsin U.S. Treasury securities, interest
bt ogaRsenter ininterest rate swaps (“interestrate swaptions”)and “to-be-announced”(“TBA”) securitiestransactions,but
theyCenmpanio other derivative and other hedging instrumentsin the future.

The Companyaccounts forTBA securitiesas derivativeinstruments. Gains and losses associatedwith TBA securities
are féposeediongain (loss)on derivativeinstruments in the accompanyingstatements of operations.

Derivative and other hedging instrumentsare carried at fair value,and changesin fair valueare recordedin earnings for
The @ehpeiigt derivative financial instruments are not designatedas hedge accounting relationships, but rather are used as
ReaBeRdEits portfolioassets and liabilities.

Holding derivativescreates exposureto creditrisk relatedto the potential for failure on the partof counterpartiesand
honéXehaigEesiehitments. In the eventof defaultby a counterparty,the Companymay have difficulty recoveringits collateral
aackimaypaginentsprovided for under the terms of the agreement. The Company’sderivative agreements require itto post or
tedbit@al to mitigate such risk. In addition, the Companyuses only registered central clearingexchanges and well-established
BaAN¥eECEdunterparties,monitors positions with individual counterpartiesand adjusts posted collateralas required.

Financial Instruments

The fairvalue of financialinstrumentsfor whichit is practicableto estimate that valueis disclosedeither in the body of
statdhhi@@IdiRkhe accompanyingnotes. RMBS, Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futurescontracts, interest rate swaps,
KapRsbiand TBA securities are accountedfor at fair value in thebalance sheets. The methodsand assumptionsused to
¢aliipaierfdigse instrumentsare presentedin Note 12 of the financialstatements.

The estimatedfair value of cash andcash equivalents,restricted cash, accruedinterestreceivable, receivable for
othesesssaiticdseleh affiliates, repurchase agreements, payable forunsettled securities purchased, accrued interestpayable
tindilthies generally approximatestheir carryingvalues as of September30, 2021 and December31, 2020 due to the short-
tHESEAHEEP] instruments.

Repurchase Agreements
The Companyfinances theacquisition of the majorityof its RMBSthrough theuse of repurchaseagreements under
repuldHeE agreements. Repurchase agreements are accounted for as collateralizedfinancing transactions, which are

eamiedatdheifounts, including accrued interest, as specified in the respectiveagreements.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements and Obligationsto Return Securities Borrowed under ReverseRepurchase
Agreements



The Companyborrows securities to cover short sales of U.S. Treasury securitiesthrough reverserepurchase transactions
masttideparchase agreements. We account for these as securitiesborrowing transactionsand recognizean obligationto return
BBerowed securities at fair valueon the balancesheet basedon the valueof the underlyingborrowed securities as of the
Teiposdagidaisreceived as collateralin connectionwith ourreverse repurchaseagreements mitigate our creditrisk exposureto
counterparties. Our reverse repurchase agreements typically have maturitiesof 30 days or less.

Manager Compensation

The Companyis externallymanaged by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager” or “Bimini Advisors”),a Maryland
comparijegndabHélty-owned subsidiary of Bimini. The Company’smanagement agreement with the Manager provides for
MyHagettefthenanagement fee and reimbursementof certain operating expenses, which are accrued and expensed duringthe
paiiekl fhey are earned or incurred. Refer to Note 13 for the terms of the managementagreement.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earningsper share (“EPS”)is calculatedas net incomeor loss attributableto common stockholders divided by the
averwgdghiasber of shares of common stock outstandingor subscribed during the period. DilutedEPS is calculatedusing the
BieRIUBY two-classmethod, as applicable, for common stock equivalents,if any. However, the common stock equivalentsare
notinemgedg diluted EPSif the resultis anti-dilutive.

Income Taxes

Orchid has qualified and elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue
as afedded (tA8&Code”). REITs are generally not subject to federal income tax on their REIT taxable income provided
thatribaye to their stockholders at least 90% of their REIT taxable income on anannual basis. In addition, a REIT must
Pesiigidies of the Code to retain its tax status.

Orchid assesses the likelihood, based on their technical merit, that uncertain tax positions will be sustained upon
baseekamihatiggts, circumstances and information available at the end of each period. All of Orchid’s tax positions are
hagegprieedas There is no accrual for any tax, interest or penalties related to Orchid’s tax position assessment. The
MRASHERNERE §dsitions is adjusted when new information is available, or when an event occurs that requires a change.

Recent AccountingPronouncements

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020Refefence Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of
Reform on Financial ReportihgASU 2020-04 prdiafeeenssiBas expedients and exceptions to GAAP requirements for
on debt instruments, leases, d’é@ﬂﬁiﬁé‘éﬁ?%d other contracts, related to the expected market transition from the London
ffehanRate (“LIBOR”), and certain other floating rate benchmark indices, or collectively, IBORs, to alternative
pefeoendeskaiesaiyS&dnsiders contract modifications related to reference rate reform tobe an event that does not require
fem@astirement at the modification date nor a reassessment of a previous accounting determination. The guidance in ASU
3Bﬁ@rM id may be elected over time, through December 31, 2022, as reference rate reform activities occur. The
baliapanlicladspodn of this ASU will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01 “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848). ASU 2021-01 expands the
848 seapeledASICaffected derivatives and give market participants the ability to apply certain aspects of the contract
eidigabomith expedients to derivative contracts affected by the discounting transition. Inaddition, ASU 2021-01 adds
implementation guidance to permit a company to apply certain optional expedients to modifications of interest rate
indepiesnsediséebunting or contract price alignment of certain derivatives as a result of reference rate reform initiatives and
extends



optional expedients to account for a derivative contract modified as a continuation of the existing contract and to continue
hedgenting when certain critical terms of a hedging relationship change to modifications made as part of the discounting
HanrHenid RS U 2021-01 is effective immediately and available generally through December 31, 2022, as reference rate

sefovities occur. The Company does not believe the adoption of this ASU will have a material impact on its financial
statements.

NOTE 2. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

The followingtable presentsthe Company’sRMBS portfolioas of September30, 2021 and December
31, 2020:

(in thousands)

September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Pass-Through RMBS Certificates:

Fixed-rate Mortgages $ 5,458,562 $ 3,560,746

Fixed-rate CMOs - 137,453

Total Pass-Through Certificates 5,458,562 3,698,199
Structured RMBS Certificates:

Interest-Only Securities 140,078 28,696

Inverse Interest-Only Securities 2,783 -

Total Structured RMBS Certificates 142,861 28,696
Total $ 5,601,423 $ 3,726,895

NOTE 3. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Companypledges certainof its RMBSas collateralunder repurchaseagreements with financialinstitutions. Interest
gendailly diked based on prevailingrates correspondingto the termsof the borrowings,and interestis generally paid at the
BIFRRARENITHe fair value of the pledged securitiesdeclines, lenders will typicallyrequire theCompany to post additional
dollaidsal eawigsto re-establishagreed uponcollateral requirements, referred to as "margincalls." Similarly, if the fair value
sdcheipkedgecdeases, lenders may releasecollateral back to theCompany. As of September 30, 2021, the Company had met all
reaigiaraelts,

As of September30, 2021 and December31, 2020, the Company’s repurchase agreements had remaining maturities as
beloswimmarized

($ in thousands)

OVERNIGHTBETWEEN 2 BETWEEN 31 GREATER

(1 DAY OR AND AND THAN
LESS) 30 DAYS 90 DAYS 90 DAYS TOTAL

September 30, 2021
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ 3,501 $ 3,393,762 $ 1,979,011 $ 54,045 $ 5,430,319
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ 2,500 $ 3,250,133 $ 1,909,639 $ 51,597 $ 5,213,869
Net weighted average borrowing rate 0.63% 0.13% 0.12% 0.15% 0.13%
December 31, 2020
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ -$ 2112969 $ 1,560,798 $ 55,776 $ 3,729,543
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ -$ 2,047,897 $ 1,494,500 $ 53,189 $ 3,595,586
Net weighted average borrowing rate - 0.23% 0.22% 0.30% 0.23%

In addition, cash pledged to counterparties for repurchase agreements was approximdtlyfilion and3B.8million as
September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. of
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If, during the term of a repurchaseagreement, a lender files for bankruptcy, the Company mightexperience difficulty
pledi®<®¥8EEENShich could result in an unsecuredclaim againstthe lender for the differencebetween theamount loanedto the
plompaayestdue to the counterpartyand the fairvalue of thecollateral pledged to such lender, including the accrued interest
seckbeablposted by the Company as collateral. At September30, 2021, the Companyhad an aggregateamount atrisk (the
HiliRraiCthe amount loanedto the Company, including interest payable and securities posted by the counterparty (if any), and
theeisf securitiesand cash pledged (if any), including accrued interest on such securities)with all counterpartiesof ~ 263.2
ﬁﬁlpﬁ@ﬂﬂﬁ‘i@lﬁ%mpanydid not have an amountat risk withany individual counterpartythat was greater than10% of the
icBepaniilseed0ity021 and December 31, 2020.

NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE AND OTHER HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

The table below summarizesfair value information about our derivative and other hedging instrumentsassets and
Septéabblifis9as@f1 and December31, 2020.

(in thousands)

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Assets

Interest rate swaps Derivative assets, at fair value  $ 16,972 $ 7
Payer swaptions (long positions) Derivative assets, at fair value 28,051 17,433
Interest rate floors Derivative assets, at fair value 2,360 -
TBA securities Derivative assets, at fair value - 3,559
Total derivative assets, at fair value $ 47,383 $ 20,999
Liabilities

Interest rate swaps Derivative liabilities, at fair value $ 2,225 $ 24,711
Payer swaptions (short positions) Derivative liabilities, at fair value 8,063 7,730
TBA securities Derivative liabilities, at fair value - 786
Total derivative liabilities, at fair value $ 10,288 $ 33,227

Margin Balances Posted to (from) Counterparties

Futures contracts Restricted cash $ 2,475 $ 489
TBA securities Restricted cash - 284
TBA securities Other liabilities - (2,520)
Interest rate swaption contracts Restricted cash 1,099 -
Interest rate swaption contracts Other liabilities (13,765) (3,563)
Interest rate swap contracts Restricted cash - 19,761
Interest rate swap contracts U.S. Treasury Notes 29,927 -
Total margin balances on derivative contracts $ 19,736 $ 14,451

Eurodollar, FedFunds and T-Note futures are cashsettled futurescontracts on an interestrate, with gains and losses
chargredliteeher Company’s cash accountson a daily basis. A minimum balance, or “margin”, is required to be maintainedin

theATF®aBIMe tables below presentinformation related to the Company’s Eurodollar and T-Note futurespositions at
2021 and DebepiBar3r;3£020.

(3 in thousands)

September 30, 2021
Average Weighted Weighted
Contract Average Average
Notional Entry Effective Open
Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equity)

Eurodollar Futures Contracts (Short Positions)
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2021 $ 50,000 1.01% 0.17% $ (104)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short Positiéns)
December 2021 5-year T-Note futures

(Dec 2021 - Dec 2026 Hedge Period) $ 269,000 1.14% 1.29% $ 1,631
December 2021 10-year Ultra futures
(Dec 2021 - Dec 2031 Hedge Period) $ 23,500 0.97% 1.19% $ 518

(8 in thousands)

December 31, 2020

Average Weighted Weighted

Contract Average Average

Notional Entry Effective Open
Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equity)
Eurodollar Futures Contracts (Short Positions)
2021 $ 50,000 1.03% 0.18% $ (424)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short Positibn)
March 2021 5 year T-Note futures

(Mar 2021 - Mar 2026 Hedge Period) $ 69,000 0.72% 0.67% $ (186)

(1) Open equity represents the cumulative gains (losses) recorded on open futures positions from inception.

(2) 5-Year T-Note futures contracts were valued at a pricd 2.84at September 30, 2021 and®6.16at December 31, 2020. The contract
values of the short positions wer83).2million and&.1million at September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. 10-
futures contracts were valued at a price d1$.25at Sept¥asddB03 2021. The contract value of the short position 3¢ad fhillion at
September 30, 2021.

Under ourinterest rate swap agreements, we typicallypay a fixedrate and receive afloating ratebased on LIBOR ("payer
The $9apisigrate we receive underour swap agreements has the effectof offsettingthe repricing characteristicsof our
E@Héﬁlﬂéﬁﬁs and cash flowson such liabilities. We are typicallyrequired to post collateralon our interestrate swap
bereenseteribintdifation related to the Company’s interestrate swap positions at September30, 2021 and December 31,
2020.

(8 in thousands)

Average Net
Fixed Average Estimated  Average
Notional Pay Receive Fair Maturity
Amount Rate Rate Value (Years)
September 30, 2021
Expiration > 3 to < 5 years $ 955,000 0.64% 0.13% $ 11,566 4.3
Expiration > 5 years 400,000 1.16% 0.12% 3,181 7.5
$ 1,355,000 0.79% 013% $ 14,747 5.2
December 31, 2020
Expiration > 3 to < 5 years $ 620,000 1.29% 0.22% $ (23,760) 3.6
Expiration > 5 years 200,000 0.67% 0.23% (944) 6.4
$ 820,000 1.14% 0.23% $ (24,704) 4.3

The table below presentsinformationrelated to the Company’sinterestrate floor positions at September
30, 2021.

($ in thousands)

Net
Strike Estimated
Notional Swap Curve Fair
Expiration Amount Cost Rate Spread Value
February 3, 2023 $ 70,000 $ 511 0.76% 30Y5Y $ 1,257
February 3, 2023 80,000 504 1.10% 10Y2Y 1,103
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$ 150,000 $ 1,015 0.94% 2,360

The table below presentsinformationrelated to the Company’sinterestrate swaptionpositions at September30,December

31, 2620.and

($ in thousands)

Option Underlying Swap
Weighted Average Weighted
Average Average Adjustable  Average
Fair Months to Notional Fixed Rate Term
Expiration Cost Value Expiration Amount Rate (LIBOR) (Years)
September 30, 2021
Payer Swaptions - long
<1 year $ 4,000 $ 1,421 6.2 $ 400,000 1.66% 3 Month 5.0
>1 year < 2 years 25,390 26,630 16.1 1,027,200 2.20% 3 Month 15.0
$ 29390 $ 28,051 13.3 $ 1,427,200 2.05% 3 Month 12.2
Payer Swaptions - short
<1 year $  (13,400)% (8,063) 4.8 $ (1,182,850) 2.10% 3 Month 11.6
December 31, 2020
Payer Swaptions - long
< 1year $ 3,450 $ 5 2.5 $ 500,000 0.95% 3 Month 4.0
>1 year < 2 years 13,410 17,428 17.4 675,000 1.49% 3 Month 12.8
$ 16,860 $ 17,433 11.0 $ 1,175,000 1.26% 3 Month 9.0
Payer Swaptions - short
<1 year $ (4,660)$ (7,730) 5.4 $ (507,700) 1.49% 3 Month 12.8

The following table summarizes our contracts to purchase and sell TBA securities as of December . There were no
outstand@AZOrBA contracts as of September 30, 2021.

(3 in thousands)

Notional Net
Amount Cost Market Carrying
Long (Short) Basis® Valué?) Valud
December 31, 2020
30-Year TBA securities:
2.0% $ 465,000 $ 479,531 $ 483,090 $ 3,559
3.0% (328,000) (342,896) (343,682) (786)
Total $ 137,000 $ 136,635 $ 139,408 $ 2,773

(1) Notional amount represents the par value (or principal balance) of the underlying Agency RMBS.

(2) Cost basis represents the forward price to be paid (received) for the underlying Agency RMBS.

(3) Market value represents the current market value of the TBA securities (or of the underlying Agency RMBS) as of period-end.

(4) Net carrying value represents the difference between the market value and the cost basis of the TBA securities as of period-end and
in dgrovatilve assets (liabilities) at fair value in our balance sheets.

Gain (Loss) From Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments, Net

The table below presents the effect of the Company’s derivative and other hedging instruments on the
opestdtensefus the nine and three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September
2021 2020 30, 2021 2020
Eurodollar futures contracts (short positions) $ 14 % (8,324)$ ™7 $ (6)
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T-Note futures contracts (short position) 866 (4,837) 581 (113)

Interest rate swaps 12,446 (67,713) 3,000 489
Payer swaptions (short positions) 3,507 (1,561) 2,295 (672)
Payer swaptions (long positions) 5,477 (3,287) 1,767 914
Interest rate floors 1,345 - 45 -
TBA securities (short positions) 864 (6,282) (2,306) 95
TBA securities (long positions) (8,559) 4,469 - 3,336
U.S. Treasury securities (short positions) - (95) - 36
Total $ 15,932 $ (87,630)% 5375 $ 4,079

Credit Risk-Related Contingent Features

The use of derivatives and other hedging instruments creates exposure to credit risk relating to potential
couldgsese¢hapnized in the event that the counterparties to these instruments fail to perform their obligations
vodenthe. We minimize this risk by limiting our counterparties for instruments which are not centrally cleared on
exelgistgee major financial institutions with acceptable credit ratings and monitoring positions with individual
touaniditpantiese may be required to pledge assets as collateral for our derivatives, whose amounts vary over time
Hasedavket value, notional amount and remaining term of the derivative contract. In the event of a default by a
wauntaypaotyyeceive payments provided for under the terms of our derivative agreements, and may have difficulty
obtainings pledged as collateral for our derivatives. The cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral for our
itesinvativats are included in restricted cash on our balance shéets.the Company's policy not to offset assets and
liabilities associated with open derivative contracts. However, the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (“CME”) rules
vhrigttoerimargin transfers as settlement payments, as opposed to adjustments to collateral. As a result, derivative
asgbtabilities associated with centrally cleared derivatives for which the CME serves as the central clearing party
presented as if these derivatives had been settled as of the reporting date.

NOTE 5. PLEDGED ASSETS
Assets Pledgedto Counterparties

The table below summarizesour assets pledged as collateral under our repurchase agreements and derivative
inclagregrienisiyspheliged relatedto securitiessold but notyet settled,as of September30, 2021 and December31, 2020.

(in thousands)

September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Repurchase Derivative Repurchase Derivative
Assets Pledged to Counterparties Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements Total
PT RMBS - fair value $ 5,273,199 $ - $ 5273199 $ 3,692,811 $ - $ 3,692,811
Structured RMBS - fair value 141,999 - 141,999 27,095 - 27,095
U.S. Treasury Notes - 29,927 29,927 - - -
Accrued interest on pledged securities 15,121 3 15,124 9,636 - 9,636
Restricted cash 47,537 3,574 51,111 58,829 20,534 79,363
Total $ 5,477,856 $ 33,504 $ 5,511,360 $ 3,788,371 $ 20,534 $ 3,808,905

Assets Pledgedfrom Counterparties

The table below summarizesassets pledgedto us from counterpartiesunder our repurchase agreements, reverse
agrekgpunebasel derivativeagreements as of September30, 2021 and December31, 2020.

(in thousands)

September 30, 2021 December 31,
2020
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Repurchase Derivative Repurchase Derivative

Assets Pledged to Orchid Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements Total

Cash $ 4,998 $ 13,765 $ 18,763 $ 120 $ 6,083 $ 6,203
U.S. Treasury securities - fair value - - - 253 - 253
Total $ 4,998 $ 13,765 $ 18,763 $ $ 373 $ 6,083 $ 6,456

RMBS and U.S. Treasury securities received as margin underour repurchaseagreements are not recordedin the balance
beca#il®ethe counterpartyretains ownershipof the security. U.S. Treasury securities received from counterpartiesas
FodlaiarabisigleR Mdagreements are recognizedas obligationsto return securities borrowed under reverserepurchase
balenaeestisép. sh receivedas margin is recognizedas cashand cash equivalentswith a correspondingamount recognized
#3d@Base inrepurchase agreements or other liabilities in the balancesheets.

NOTE 6. OFFSETTING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company’sderivative agreements and repurchaseagreements and reverse repurchase agreements are subject to
agreengeityingh masternetting or similar arrangements,which providefor the rightof offset inthe event of defaultor in
H%%Yﬁptéyof either party tothe transactions. The Companyreports its assets and liabilitiessubject to these arrangements

bAsasgross

The followingtable presentsinformationregarding those assetsand liabilitiessubject to such arrangementsas if the
preseigi@paivyhad anet basis as of September30, 2021 and December31, 2020.

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Assets

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount  Offset in the Balance Sheet

of Assets Financial
Gross Amount Gross Amount Presented Instruments Cash
of Recognized Offset in the in the Received as  Received as Net
Assets Balance Sheet Balance Sheet  Collateral Collateral Amount

September 30, 2021
Interest rate swaps $ 16,972 $ -3 16,972 $ -3 -3 16,972
Interest rate swaptions 28,051 - 28,051 - (13,765) 14,286
Interest rate floors 2,360 - 2,360 - - 2,360

$ 47,383 $ - $ 47,383 $ -8 (13,765)$ 33,618
December 31, 2020
Interest rate swaps $ 7% - $ 7% -8 - $ 7
Interest rate swaptions 17,433 - 17,433 - (3,563) 13,870
TBA securities 3,559 - 3,559 - (2,520) 1,039

$ 20,999 $ - $ 20,999 $ -8 (6,083)$ 14,916

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Liabilities

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount  Offset in the Balance Sheet
of Liabilities Financial

Gross Amount Gross Amount Presented Instruments
of Recognized Offset in the in the Posted as Cash Posted Net
Liabilities Balance Sheet Balance Sheet Collateral as Collateral Amount
September 30, 2021
Repurchase Agreements $ 5,213,869 $ - $ 5213869 % (5,166,332)$ (47,537)$ -
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Interest rate swaps 2,225 - 2,225 (2,225) - -

Interest rate swaptions 8,063 - 8,063 - (1,099) 6,964
$ 5,224,157 $ -3 5,224,157 $  (5,168,557)% (48,636)$ 6,964

December 31, 2020

Repurchase Agreements $ 3,595,586 $ - $ 3595586 % (3,536,757)% (58,829)$ -

Interest rate swaps 24,711 - 24,711 - (19,761) 4,950

Interest rate swaptions 7,730 - 7,730 - - 7,730

TBA securities 786 - 786 - (284) 502
$ 3,628,813 $ - $ 3628813% (3,536,757)% (78,874)$ 13,182

The amounts disclosed for collateralreceived by or posted to the same counterpartyup to and not exceedingthe net
assedmdiatsilftiheresented in the balancesheets. The fairvalue of the actual collateral received by or postedto the same
eppietAtpasiyeeds theamounts presented. See Note 5 for a discussionof collateral posted orreceived against or for repurchase
ehligeticagiveand other hedging instruments.

NOTE 7. CAPITAL STOCK
Common StockIssuances

During the nine months ended September30, 2021 and the yearended December31, 2020, the Company completed the
publiiellffeiiggs of shares of its commonstock.

(3 in thousands, except per share amounts)

Weighted
Average
Price

Received Net
Type of Offering Period Per Shar&) Shares Proceeds®®
2021
At the Market Offering Progfiam First Quarter $ 5.10 308,048 $ 1,572
Follow-on Offerings First Quarter 5.31 17,940,000 95,336
At the Market Offering Progréins Second Quarter 5.40 23,087,089 124,746
At the Market Offering Progfém Third Quarter 4.94 35,818,338 177,007
Total 77,153,475 $ 398,661
2020
At the Market Offering Progfim First Quarter $ 6.13 3,170,727 $ 19,447
At the Market Offering Progfim Second Quarter - - -
At the Market Offering Progfam Third Quarter 5.06 3,073,326 15,566
At the Market Offering Progfim Fourth Quarter 5.32 6,775,187 36,037

13,019,240 $ 71,050

(1) Weighted average price received per share is after deducting the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other offering costs.

(2) Net proceeds are net of the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other offering costs.

(3) The Company has entered into nine equity distribution agreements, eight of which have either been terminated because all shares
were sefdaeed with a subsequent agreement.

Stock Repurchase Program

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase 000 ,@0Ghares of the Company’s
common stock. On February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock repurchase program for up
telditionald,522,82X%hares of the Company's common stock. Coupled witi&B¢757shares remaining from the origi2€00,000
share authorization, the increased authorization brought the total authoriz&tjd®gb7%hares, representing 10% of the
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Company’s then outstanding share count. As part of the stock repurchase program, shares may be purchased in open market
transactions, block purchases, through privately negotiated transactions, or pursuant to any trading plan that may be
adepiagige with Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Open market
velibdhasede in accordance with Exchange Act Rule 10b-18, which sets certain restrictions on the method, timing, price
apdivalurRetakock repurchases. The timing, manner, price and amount of any repurchases will be determined by the
€igerPABY Hhilswill be subject to economic and market conditions, stock price, applicable legal requirements and other
faekwszdien does not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of common stock and the program may be
fisesRdRded at the Company’s discretion without prior notice.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through September 30, 2021, the Company repurchased68f&bbt
shares at an aggregate cost of approximate0$ million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average prickQyfe$
share. No shares were repurchased during the nine months ended September 30, 2021. During the nine months ended
SepxrheCddnpany repurchased a totall®891shares at an aggregate cost of approximately. Bmillion, including commissions
and fees, for a weighted average price 8f4R2per share. The remaining authorization under the repurchase program as of
30, 2021 was837,311shares. September

Cash Dividends

The table below presents the cash dividends declared on the Company’s common

stock.
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 1.395% 4,662
2014 2.160 22,643
2015 1.920 38,748
2016 1.680 41,388
2017 1.680 70,717
2018 1.070 55,814
2019 0.960 54,421
2020 0.790 53,570
2021 - YTD 0.650 74,045
Totals $ 12.305 $ 416,008

(1) OnOctober 12, 2021the Company declared a dividend @f®5 per share to be paid oiNovember 26, 2021The effect of this dividend
included in the table above but is not reflected in the Company’s financial statements as of Septembeis30, 2021.

NOTE 8. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In April 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted, and the stockholders approved, the Orchid Island
202CHzjtdtylhmentive Plan (the “2021 Incentive Plan”) to replace the Orchid Island Capital, Inc. 2012 Equity
(deertiig@ Plagentive Plan” and together with the 2021 Incentive Plan, the “Incentive Plans™). The 2021 Incentive
Ptawides for the award of stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock award, performance units, other equity-
busadls (and dividend equivalents with respect to awards of performance units and other equity-based awards)
amcbntive awards. The 2021 Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s
Bamd @’ except that the Company’s full Board of Directors will administer awards made to directors who are not
efhle Gmnpany or its affiliates. The 2021 Incentive Plan provides for awards of up to an aggregate of 10% of the
tmstsednatidg shares of our common stock (on a fully diluted basis) at the time of the awards, subject to a
Aggragat®/,366,623chares of the Company’s common stock that may be issued under the 2021 Incentive Plan.
Incentive Plan replddes 282 2012 Incentive Plan, and no further grants will be made under the 2012 Incentive
Plan.
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However, any outstanding awards under the 2012 Incentive Plan will continue in accordance with the terms
bfahetR@1Plan and any award agreement executed in connection with such outstanding awards.

Performance Units

The Company has issued, and may in the future issue additional, performance units under the Incentive Plans
exectatceetaifficers and employees of its Manager. “Performance Units” vest after the end of a defined
besfammanatigfaxitdn of the performance conditions set forth in the performance unit agrééheeneéarned, each
Performance Unit will be settled by the issuance of one share of the Company’s common stock, at which time the
Performance Unit will be cancelled. The Performance Units contain dividend equivalent rights, which entitle the
Rartcépma@istributions declared by the Company on common stock, but do not include the right to vote the
shal@d yiigommon stock. Performance Units are subject to forfeiture should the participant no longer serve as an
efficative employee of the Company or the Manager. Compensation expense for the Performance Units is
theagmaadinyeresting period once it becomes probable that the performance conditions will be achieved.

The following table presents information related to Performance Units outstanding during the nine
Septaotits 20d2d21 and 2020.

(% in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested, beginning of period 4,554 $ 7.45 19,021 $ 7.78
Granted 137,897 5.88 - -
Forfeited - - (1,607) 7.45
Vested and issued (4,554) 7.45 (10,583) 8.03
Unvested, end of period 137,897 $ 5.88 6,831 $ 7.45
Compensation expense during period $ 222 $ 32
Unrecognized compensation expense, end of period $ 592 $ 8
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 674 $ 34
Weighted-average remaining vesting term (in years) 1.6 0.5

The number of shares of common stock issuable upon the vesting of the remaining outstanding Performance
redddadtsmtlie third quarter of 2020 as a result of the book value impairment event that occurred pursuant to the
Congpdnprs Incentive Compensation Plans (the "Plans"). The book value impairment event occurred when the
biovhpaalys per share declined by more than 15% during the quarter ended March 31, 2020 and the Company's
pbepkhaatudecline from January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020 was more than 10%. The Plans provide that if such a
hopkivalewet event occurs, then the number of outstanding Performance Units that are outstanding as of the last
tap-gfisutdr period shall be reduced by 15%.

Stock Awards

The Company has issued, and may in the future issue additional, immediately vested common stock under
Incehtive Plans to certain executive officers and employees of its Manager. The following table presents
infhrihatiestadlacedmon stock issued during the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. All of the fully
vieated of common stock issued during the three months ended September 30, 2021, and the related compensation
expense, were granted with respect to service performed during the previous fiscal year.
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(8 in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September

30,2021 2020
Fully vested shares granted 137,897 -
Weighted average grant date price per share $ 5.88 $ -
Compensation expense related to fully vested shares of common stock aWards $ 811 $ -

(1) The awards issued during the nine months ended September 30, 2021 were granted with respect to service performed in 2020.
g Ohafedgmpensation expense related to the 2021 awards was accrued and recognized in 2020.

Deferred Stock Units

Non-employee directors receive a portion of their compensation in the form of deferred stock unit awards
pur{tf@s tisthe Incentive Plans. Each DSU represents a right to receive one share of the Company’s common
B6dks diteeimmediately vested and are settled at a future date based on the election of the individual participant.
ddvetdds dis/idend equivalent rights, which entitle the participant to receive distributions declared by the Company
stocknifhese dividend equivalent rights are settled in cash or additional DSUs at the participant’s election. The
IDShidelthraight to vote the underlying shares of common stock.

The following table presents information related to the DSUs outstanding during the nine months ended
202%epterpb2030,

(% in thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Outstanding, beginning of period 90,946 $ 5.44 43,570 $ 6.56
Granted and vested 36,684 5.46 36,682 4.22
Issued - - - -
Outstanding, end of period 127,630 $ 5.44 80,252 $ 5.49
Compensation expense during period $ 180 $ 135
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 624 $ 402

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company may become involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the
busiaedavianauesaalt is not aware of any reported or unreported contingencies at September 30, 2021.

NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES

The Company will generally not be subject to federal income tax on its REIT taxable income to the extent it distributes
taxabfeRirddme to its stockholders and satisfies the ongoing REIT requirements, including meeting certain asset, income
aRchsiaRkp tests. A REIT must generally distribute at least 90% of its REIT taxable income to its stockholders, of which
st pendigdiputed within the taxable year, in order to avoid the imposition of an excise tax. The remaining balance may
hp distibeietlof the following taxable year, provided the REIT elects to treat such amount as a prior year distribution and
othetsregjiiti@ments.

NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(EPS) o



The Companyhad dividendeligible Performance Units and Deferred Stock Units that were outstanding during the nine
mondhs 8@&d September 30, 2021 and 2020. The basic and diluted per share computationsinclude theseunvested
RedfoefenreelStitk Units if there isincome availableto commonstock, as they have dividend participationrights. The
pemesitethnce Units and Deferred Stock Units have no contractualobligation to share in losses. Because thereis no such
ahligstdarpeiormanceUnits and Deferred Stock Units are not includedin the basicand diluted EPS computationswhen no
Hegraglsto common stock eventhough they are consideredparticipatingsecurities.

The table below reconcilesthe numeratorand denominatorof EPS for the nine and three months ended September 30,
202@021 and

(in thousands, except per share information)

Nine Months Ended September 30,T'hree Months Ended

2021 2020 Septezfber 2020

Basic and diluted EPS per common share:
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS per share of common stock:

Net (loss) income - Basic and diluted $ (20,196)$ (14,351)$ 26,038 $ 28,076
Weighted average shares of common stock:

Shares of common stock outstanding at the balance sheet date 153,318 69,296 153,318 69,296

Unvested dividend eligible share based compensation

outstanding at the balance sheet date - - 266 87

Effect of weighting (48,012) (3,282) (24,997) (2,081)
Weighted average shares-basic and diluted 105,306 66,014 128,587 67,302
Net (loss) income per common share:

Basic and diluted $ 0.19)$ 0.22)$ 0.20 $ 0.42
Anti-dilutive incentive shares not included in calculation. 266 87 - -

NOTE 12. FAIR VALUE

The frameworkfor using fair value to measure assets and liabilities defines fairvalue as theprice that would bereceived
assetaiglhiiito transfera liability (an exit price). A fair value measure shouldreflect the assumptions that market participants
piotilbusteiasset or liability, includingthe assumptionsabout the risk inherentin a particularvaluation technique, the effect of
BieHEishienr use of an asset andthe risk of non-performance. Required disclosures include stratificationof balance sheet
AlBeYuMEd at fair value based oninputs the Company usesto derive fair value measurements. These stratificationsare:

e Level 1 valuations,where the valuationis based on quoted marketprices foridentical assets orliabilities traded in
petivehmackede exchanges and over-the-countermarkets withsufficient volume),

e Level 2 valuations,where the valuationis based on quoted marketprices for similar instrumentstraded in active
praekstofitgtcal or similarinstrumentsin markets that are notactive and model-based valuation techniques for
sibigkialint assumptions are observablein the market,and

e Level 3 valuations,where the valuationis generated from model-basedtechniques that use significant assumptions not
observable in the market,but observablebased on Company-specificdata. These unobservableassumptions reflect
thémpany’s ownestimates for assumptionsthat market participantswould use in pricing the asset or liability.
Meluatd@Rs typically include optionpricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques,but may also
inelodanbeketprices of assets orliabilities that are not directly comparable to the subjectasset or liability.

The Company'sRMBS and TBA securitiesare Level 2 valuations,and such valuationscurrently are determinedby the
baséd@mnpaddpendent pricing sourcesand/or third party brokerquotes, whenavailable. Because the price estimatesmay vary,
thémpany mustmake certainjudgments and assumptionsabout the appropriateprice to use to calculatethe fairvalues. The

fherpepeaddnt pricing sourcesuse various valuation techniquesto determinethe price of the Company’ssecurities. These

techniques
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include observingthe mostrecent marketfor like oridentical assets (includingsecurity coupon, maturity, yield, and

ppepag paatapeedshiques to determinemarket creditspreads (optionadjusted spread,zero volatilityspread, spreadto the U.S.
&lieesWYspread toa benchmark such as a TBA), and model drivenapproaches (the discountedcash flow method, Black
Satwlesaadels which rely upon observablemarket ratessuch as theterm structureof interestrates and volatility). The
ppiviapriAtehpekaskd is basedon market convention. The pricingsource determinesthe spread of recently observed trade
8B4¥HMBle markets for assets similarto those being priced. The spreadis then adjustedbased on variancesin certain
bharaaariisarket observationand the assetbeing priced. Those characteristicsinclude: type of asset, the expected lifeof the
3af6fiieand predictabilityof the expectedfuture cash flows of the asset, whether the coupon of the assetis fixed or adjustable,
Higarantor of the securityif applicable,the coupon, the maturity, the issuer, size of the underlyingloans, yearin which the
widerdyigglo@asloan to valueratio, statein which the underlyingloans reside, credit score of the underlyingborrowers and
gthppyapahtesThe fair value of thesecurity is determined by using the adjustedspread.

The Company’sU.S. Treasury Notes are based on quoted pricesfor identicalinstruments in active markets and are

Levélassidieeas

The Company’sfutures contractsare Level 1 valuations,as they areexchange-tradedinstruments and quoted market
readP§jC8sailable. Futures contractsare settled daily. The Company’sinterest rate swaps and interestrate swaptionsare Level 2
valuations. The fair value of interestrate swapsis determinedusing a discountedcash flow approach using forwardmarket
Hil@réRicatastrates, whichare observableinputs. The fair value of interestrate swaptionsis determinedusing an optionpricing
model.

RMBS (basedon the fairvalue option),derivatives and TBA securitieswere recordedat fair valueon a recurringbasis
and duwdagibadinended September 30, 2021 and 2020. When determining fair value measurements, the Company considers
Hrepsirci@ahntageousmarket in which it would transactand considersassumptions that market participantswould use when
pskendttieen possible, the Companylooks to activeand observablemarkets to price identicalassets. When identicalassets are
nehsiadesharkets, the Company looks to marketobservable data for similar assets.

The followingtable presentsfinancial assets (liabilities)measured at fair valueon a recurringbasis as of September
Dec8fhb®31 and20Derivative contracts are reportedas a net position by contract type, and not based on master netting arrangements.

(in thousands)

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
September 30, 2021
Mortgage-backed securities $ -3 5,601,423 $ -
U.S. Treasury Notes 37,409 - -
Interest rate swaps - 14,747 -
Interest rate swaptions - 19,988 -
Interest rate floors - 2,360 -
December 31, 2020
Mortgage-backed securities $ -3 3,726,895 $ -
Interest rate swaps - (24,704) -
Interest rate swaptions - 9,703 -
TBA securities - 2,773 -

During the nine and three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, there were no transfers of financial assets or
betwiabiligiesls 1, 2 or 3.
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NOTE 13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

The Company is externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”) pursuant to the
mari§genfteagreement. The management agreement has been renewed through February 20, 2022 and provides
fRfomatic one-year extension options thereafter and is subject to certain termination rights. Under the terms of
thenagement agreement, the Manager is responsible for administering the business activities and day-to-day
fREEORPRAY. The Manager receives a monthly management fee in the amount of:

° One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month-end equity, as defined in the
Hpreagasnent

° One-twelfth of 1.25% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $250 million and less
HepmaPio $500 million, and

° One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $500 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf and to pay
Mariiiger the Company’s pro rata portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management agreement.
Sloupditheerminate the management agreement without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination fee equal to
th¥R8 the average annual management fee, as defined in the management agreement, before or on the last day of

HfakerBgreement.

Total expenses recorded for the management fee and costs incurred were approxinfafetyiBion and25 million
for the nine and three months ended September 30, 2021, respectively,afidifillion and %6 million for the nine and
three months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. At September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the net
dmothffiliates was approximately%imillion and®6 million, respectively.

Other Relationships with Bimini

Robert Cauley, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors, also serves as Chief Executive
Chairfafficef @dBoard of Directors of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. George H. Haas, IV, our Chief
BiffieiaChief Investment Officer, Secretary and a member of our Board of Directors, also serves as the Chief Financial
(Dkfecer émieifficer and Treasurer of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. In addition, as of September 30,
8WhbdBiBYD35%hares, or 1.7, of the Company’s common stock.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIALCONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes to those statements included in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q. The discussion may contain certain forward-
lokingnts that involve risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are those that are not historical in nature. As a result
fany factors, such as those set forth under “Risk Factors” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, our actual results may
differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company that invests in residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) which are issued and
guaranteed by a federally chartered corporation or agency (“Agency RMBS”). Our investment strategy focuses on, and our
porgitioof, two categories of Agency RMBS: (i) traditional pass-through Agency RMBS, such as mortgage pass-through
fesiEdcB{eFannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae (the “GSEs”) and collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”) issued by the
EPESRMBS”) and (ii) structured Agency RMBS, such as interest-only securities (“I0s”), inverse interest-only securities (“I10s”)
phihcipal only securities (“POs”), among other types of structured Agency RMBS. We were formed by Bimini in August 2010,
commenced operations on November 24, 2010 and completed our initial public offering (“IPO”) on February 20, 2013. We are
externally managed by Bimini Advisors, an investment adviser registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”).

Our business objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted total returns over the long term through a combination of capital
appreciation and the payment of regular monthly distributions. We intend to achieve this objective by investing in and
siategifialbapital between the two categories of Agency RMBS described above. We seek to generate income from (i) the net
interdst on our leveraged PT RMBS portfolio and the leveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS portfolio, and (ii) the
inteyest we generate from the unleveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS portfolio. We intend to fund our PT RMBS
@Btain of our structured Agency RMBS through short-term borrowings structured as repurchase agreements. PT RMBS and
Aegieye MBS typically exhibit materially different sensitivities to movements in interestrates. Declines in the value of one
peiyfbli®ffset by appreciation in the other. The percentage of capital that we allocate to our two Agency RMBS asset categories
vity and will be actively managed in an effort to maintain the level of income generated by the combined portfolios, the stability
iddide stream and the stability of the value of the combined portfolios. We believe that this strategy will enhance our liquidity,
earnings, book value stability and asset selection opportunities in various interestrate environments.

We operate so as to qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”). We generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax to the extent that we currently distribute all of
BEIT taxable income (as defined in the Code) to our stockholders and maintain our REIT qualification.

The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “ORC”.
Capital Raising Activities

On January 23, 2020, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement”)
threavtlles agents pursuant to which we could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $200,000,000 of
8l1a86 common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We
issved of 3,170,727 shares under the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of $19.8 million,
aetproceeds of approximately $19.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in August 2020.

On August 4, 2020, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement”) with
saled@igients pursuant to which we could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $150,000,000 of shares of
e8imon stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a
total
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of 27,493,650 shares under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $150.0
million, and net proceeds of approximately $147.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in June 2021.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting Agreement”) with J.P.
SecdEREARL.C (“J.P. Morgan”), relating to the offer and sale of 7,600,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased
thares of our common stock from the Company pursuant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.20 per share. In
additiented J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 1,140,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms
@Bfditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 8,740,000 shares of our
sakeFcurred on January 25, 2021, with proceeds to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement”) with J.P.
relatMigrgathe offer and sale of 8,000,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock
fherCompany pursuant to the March 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.45 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a 30-
#p¥ion to purchase up to an additional 1,200,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P.
Mergsed in full on March 3, 2021. The closing of the offering of 9,200,000 shares of our common stock occurred on March 5,
iR proceeds to us of approximately $50.0 million, net of offering expenses.

On June 22, 2021, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement”) with
saled@igients pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $250,000,000 of shares of
e8imon stock in transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. Through
September 30, 2021, we issued a total of 41,568,338 shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate
Br@&®eds of approximately $211.0 million, and net proceeds of approximately $207.5 million, after commissions and fees.
fbsggeeier 30, 2021 and through October 28, 2021, we issued a total of 7,838,998 shares under the June 2021 Equity
Risiethheianfor aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $39.0 million, and net proceeds of approximately $38.4 million, after
commissions and fees.

Stock Repurchase Agreement

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of our common
Thesiaglag, manner, price and amount of any repurchases is determined by the Company in its discretion and is subjectto
gRANeEHEet conditions, stock price, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The authorization does not obligate the
feoangaire any particular amount of common stock and the program may be suspended or discontinued at the Company’s
AREEEOPrior notice. On February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the stock repurchase program for up to
additional 4,522,822 shares of the Company’s common stock. Coupled with the 783,757 shares remaining from the original
25200 A@Borization, the increased authorization brought the total authorization to 5,306,579 shares, representing 10% of the
Company’s then outstanding share count. This stock repurchase program has no termination date.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through September 30, 2021, the Company repurchased a total of
shares#%anldggregate cost of approximately $40.4 million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average price of $7.10
Bleare. The Company did not repurchase any shares of its common stock during the nine and three months ended September 30,
20%remaining authorization under the repurchase program as of September 30, 2021 was 837,311 shares.

Factors that Affect our Results of Operations and Financial Condition

A variety of industry and economic factors may impact our results of operations and financial condition. These factors
include:

e interest rate trends;
e the difference between Agency RMBS yields and our funding and hedging costs;
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e competition for, and supply of, investments in Agency RMBS;

e actions taken by the U.S. government, including the presidential administration, the Fed, the Federal Housing Financing
Agency (the “FHFA”), Federal Housing Administration (the “FHA”), the Federal Open Market Committee (the “FOMC”)
s titeeasury;

prepayment rates on mortgages underlying our Agency RMBS and credit trends insofar as they affect prepayment rates;

806kr market developments.

In addition, a variety of factors relating to our business may also impact our results of operations and financial condition.
factor§estude:

our degree of leverage;

our access to funding and borrowing capacity;

our borrowing costs;

our hedging activities;

the market value of our investments; and

the requirements to qualify as a REIT and the requirements to qualify fora registration exemption under the Investment

Company Act.
Results of Operations

Described below are the Company’sresults of operations for the nine and three monthsended September30, 2021, as compared
the CH#inpany’sresults of operations for the nineand three months ended September 30, 2020.

Net (Loss)Income Summary

Net loss forthe nine months ended September 30, 2021 was $20.2 million, or $0.19 per share. Netloss for the nine months
SeptegiBed30, 2020 was $14.4 million, or $0.22 pershare. Net income for the threemonths ended September 30, 2021 was $26.0
million, or $0.20 per share. Netincome forthe three months ended September 30, 2020 was $28.1 million, or $0.42 pershare. The
components of net (loss)income for the nine andthree monthsended September30, 2021 and 2020, along with the changes in those

components are presentedin the tablebelow:

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended, September 30,

2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
Interest income $ 90,279 $ 90,152 $ 127 $ 34,169 $ 27,223 $ 6,946
Interest expense (5,067) (23,045) 17,978 (1,570) (2,043) 473
Net interest income 85,212 67,107 18,105 32,599 25,180 7,419
(Losses) gains on RMBS and derivative contracts  (94,522) (73,712) (20,810) (2,887) 5,745 (8,632)
Net portfolio (loss) income (9,310) (6,605) (2,705) 29,712 30,925 (1,213)
Expenses (10,886) (7,746) (3,140) (3,674) (2,849) (825)
Net (loss) income $ (20,196)$  (14,351)% (5,845)$ 26,038 $ 28,076 $ (2,038)

GAAP and Non-GAAP Reconciliations

In addition to the results presented in accordance with GAAP, our results of operations discussed below include
none@#AP financial information, including “Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses”,
Titeoestrhixpense” and “Economic Net Interest Income.”

Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses
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We have elected to account for our Agency RMBS under the fair value option. Securities held under the fair value
option are recorded at estimated fair value, with changes in the fair value recorded as unrealized gains or losses through
the statements of operations.

In addition, we have not designated our derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes as hedges for
accounting purposes, but rather hold them for economic hedging purposes. Changes in fair value of these instruments
presented in a separate line item in the Company’s statements of operations and are not included in interest expense.
frch, for financial reporting purposes, interest expense and cost of funds are not impacted by the fluctuation in value of
terivative instruments.

Presenting net earnings excluding realized and unrealized gains and losses allows management to: (i) isolate the net
interest income and other expenses of the Company over time, free of all fair value adjustments and (ii) assess the
effectiveness of our funding and hedging strategies on our capital allocation decisions and our asset allocation
parfdrmdimge and hedging strategies, capital allocation and asset selection are integral to our risk management strategy,
dmelefore critical to the management of our portfolio. We believe that the presentation of our net earnings excluding
sealiwadealized gains is useful to investors because it provides a means of comparing our results of operations to those
ofir peers who have not elected the same accounting treatment. Our presentation of net earnings excluding realized and
unrealized gains and losses may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures of other companies, who may use
differkations. As a result, net earnings excluding realized and unrealized gains and losses should not be considered as a
substitute for our GAAP net income (loss) as a measure of our financial performance or any measure of our liquidity
@GAAP. The table below presents a reconciliation of our net income (loss) determined in accordance with GAAP and
metnings excluding realized and unrealized gains and losses.

Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses
(in thousands, except per share data)

Per Share
Net Earnings Net Earnings
Excluding Excluding
Realized and Realized and Realized and Realized and
Net Unrealized Unrealized Net Unrealized Unrealized
Income Gains and Gains and Income Gains and Gains and
(GAAP) Losses® Losses (GAAP) Losses Losses
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 26,038 $ (2,887)$ 28,925 $ 020 $ (0.02)$ 0.22
June 30, 2021 (16,865) (40,844) 23,979 0.17) (0.41) 0.24
March 31, 2021 (29,369) (50,791) 21,422 (0.34) (0.60) 0.26
December 31, 2020 16,479 (4,605) 21,084 0.23 (0.07) 0.30
September 30, 2020 28,076 5,745 22,331 0.42 0.09 0.33
June 30, 2020 48,772 28,749 20,023 0.74 0.43 0.31
March 31, 2020 (91,199) (108,206) 17,007 (1.41) (1.68) 0.27
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ (20,196)$ (94,522)$ 74,326 $ (0.19)$ (0.90)$ 0.71
September 30, 2020 (14,351) (73,712) 59,361 (0.22) (1.12) 0.90

(1) Includes realized and unrealized gains (losses) on RMBS and derivative financial instruments, including net interest income or expense on
interest rate swaps

Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interest Income

We use derivative and other hedging instruments, specifically Eurodollar, Fed Funds and Treasury Note (“T-Note”)
futures contracts, short positions in U.S. Treasury securities, interest rate swaps and swaptions, to hedge a portion of the
interest rate risk on repurchase agreements in a rising rate environment.
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We have not elected to designate our derivative holdings for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in fair value of
instthasents are presented in a separate line item in our statements of operations and not included in interest expense.
frch, for financial reporting purposes, interest expense and cost of funds are not impacted by the fluctuation in value of
teeivative instruments.

For the purpose of computing economic net interest income and ratios relating to cost of funds measures, GAAP
interest expense has been adjusted to reflect the realized and unrealized gains or losses on certain derivative
thetflonepany uses, specifically Eurodollar, Fed Funds and U.S. Treasury futures, and interest rate swaps and swaptions,
that pertain to each period presented. We believe that adjusting our interest expense for the periods presented by the
gailwsses on these derivative instruments would not accurately reflect our economic interest expense for these periods.
idason is that these derivative instruments may cover periods that extend into the future, not just the current period.
fenjized or unrealized gains or losses on the instruments reflect the change in market value of the instrument caused by
changes in underlying interest rates applicable to the term covered by the instrument, not just the current period. For
peciod presented, we have combined the effects of the derivative financial instruments in place for the respective period
whitlactual interest expense incurred on borrowings to reflect total economic interest expense for the applicable period.
Interest expense, including the effect of derivative instruments for the period, is referred to as economic interest
Ngidanserest income, when calculated to include the effect of derivative instruments for the period, is referred to as
aeonu@iest income. This presentation includes gains or losses on all contracts in effect during the reporting period,
tlverimgnt period as well as periods in the future.

The Company may invest in TBAs, which are forward contracts for the purchase or sale of Agency RMBS at a
predetermined price, face amount, issuer, coupon and stated maturity on an agreed-upon future date. The specific
REEBGyto be delivered into the contract are not known until shortly before the settlement date. We may choose, prior to
settlement, to move the settlement of these securities out to a later date by entering into a dollar roll transaction. The
Agency RMBS purchased or sold for a forward settlement date are typically priced at a discount to equivalent securities
settling in the current month. Consequently, forward purchases of Agency RMBS and dollar roll transactions represent
form of off-balance sheet financing. These TBAs are accounted for as derivatives and marked to market through the
staement. Gains or losses on TBAs are included with gains or losses on other derivative contracts and are not included
interest income for purposes of the discussions below.

We believe that economic interest expense and economic net interest income provide meaningful information to
consider, in addition to the respective amounts prepared in accordance with GAAP. The non-GA AP measures help
management to evaluate its financial position and performance without the effects of certain transactions and GAAP
adjustments that are not necessarily indicative of our current investment portfolio or operations. The unrealized gains or
losses on derivative instruments presented in our statements of operations are not necessarily representative of the total
interest rate expense that we will ultimately realize. This is because as interest rates move up or down in the future, the
gains or losses we ultimately realize, and which will affect our total interest rate expense in future periods, may differ
fhemmnrealized gains or losses recognized as of the reporting date.

Our presentation of the economic value of our hedging strategy has important limitations. First, other market
participants may calculate economic interest expense and economic net interest income differently than the way we
calculate them. Second, while we believe that the calculation of the economic value of our hedging strategy described
above helps to present our financial position and performance, it may be of limited usefulness as an analytical tool.
Therefore, the economic value of our investment strategy should not be viewed in isolation and is not a substitute for
interest expense and net interest income computed in accordance with GAAP.

The tables below present a reconciliation of the adjustments to interest expense shown for each period relative to

derigative instruments, and the income statement line item, gains (losses) on derivative instruments, calculated in
accordance with GAAP for each quarter of 2021 to date and 2020.
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Gains (Losses) on Derivative Instruments

(in thousands)

Funding Hedges

Recognized in Attributed to Attributed to
Income U.S. Treasury and TBA Current Future
Statement Securities Gain (Loss) Period Periods
(GAAP) (Short Positions)  (Long Positions) (Non-GAAP) (Non-GAAP)
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 5375 $ (2,306) $ - $ (1,248)$ 8,929
June 30, 2021 (34,915) (5,963) - (5,104) (23,848)
March 31, 2021 45,472 9,133 (8,559) (4,044) 48,942
December 31, 2020 8,538 (436) 5,480 (5,790) 9,284
September 30, 2020 4,079 131 3,336 (6,900) 7,512
June 30, 2020 (8,851) 582 1,133 (5,751) (4,815)
March 31, 2020 (82,858) (7,090) - (4,900) (70,868)
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 15,932 $ 864 $ (8,559) $ (10,396)$ 34,023
September 30, 2020 (87,630) (6,377) 4,469 (17,551) (68,171)

Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interest Income
(in thousands)

Interest Expense on Borrowings

Gains
(Losses) on

Derivative
Instruments Net Interest Income
GAAP Attributed Economic GAAP Economic

Interest Interest to Current Interest Net Interest Net Interest

Income Expense Period) Expense? Income Incoméd)
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 34,169 $ 1,570 $ (1,248) $ 2,818 $ 32,599 $ 31,351
June 30, 2021 29,254 1,556 (5,104) 6,660 27,698 22,594
March 31, 2021 26,856 1,941 (4,044) 5,985 24,915 20,871
December 31, 2020 25,893 2,011 (5,790) 7,801 23,882 18,092
September 30, 2020 27,223 2,043 (6,900) 8,943 25,180 18,280
June 30, 2020 27,258 4,479 (5,751) 10,230 22,779 17,028
March 31, 2020 35,671 16,523 (4,900) 21,423 19,148 14,248
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 90,279 $ 5,067 $ (10,396) $ 15,463 $ 85,212 $ 74,816
September 30, 2020 90,152 23,045 (17,551) 40,596 67,107 49,556

(1) Reflects the effect of derivative instrument hedges for only the period presented.
(2) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP interest expense.
(3) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP net interest income.

Net Interest Income

During the nine months ended September30, 2021, we generated$85.2 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $90.3
intef@dtiigibfe from RMBS assetsoffset by $5.1million of interest expense onborrowings. For the comparableperiod ended
Sepmnbeive generated$67.1 million of net interestincome, consistingof $90.2 million of interest income from RMBS assetsoffset
B23.0 millionof interest expense on borrowings. The $0.1 million increasein interestincome was due to a $1,284.9 million increase
#verage RMBS, partially offset by a 103 basis point("bps") decreasein the yieldon average RMBS. The $18.0 milliondecrease in
axpeese was due to a 84 bps decreasein the averagecost of funds, partially offset by a $1,250.5 million increasein average

outstanding
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borrowings.

On an economicbasis, our interest expense on borrowings for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $15.5
million and $40.6 million, respectively, resultingin $74.8 million and $49.6 million of economic net interestincome, respectively.

During the three monthsended September30, 2021, we generated$32.6 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $34.2
inter®dtligivaie from RMBS assetsoffset by $1.6million of interest expense onborrowings. For the threemonths ended September
3020, we generated $25.2 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $27.2 million of interest income from RMBS assetsoffset by
fiion of interest expense on borrowings. The $6.9 million increasein interestincome was due to a $1,713.8 million increasein
&MiBSepartially offset by a 52 bps decreasein the yieldon average RMBS. The $0.5 million decrease in interest expense wasdue to
Bpddecreasein the averagecost of funds, partially offset by a $1,636.3 million increasein average outstanding borrowings.

On an economicbasis, our interest expense on borrowings for the threemonths ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $2.8
million and $8.9 million,respectively, resultingin $31.4 millionand $18.3 million of economic net interestincome, respectively.

The tables below provideinformation on our portfolioaverage balances, interestincome, yieldon assets, average borrowings,
expdRéReshstof funds, net interestincome and net interestspread forthe nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 andeach

quarter of 2021 to dateand 2020 onboth a GAAPand economicbasis.

(% in thousands)

Average Yield on Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds

RMBS Interest  Average Average GAAP Economic GAAP Economic

Held? Income RMBS Borrowing$) Basis Basis® Basis Basis®
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 5,136,331 $ 34,169 2.66% $ 4,864,287 $ 1,570 $ 2,818 0.13% 0.23%
June 30, 2021 4,504,887 29,254 2.60% 4,348,192 1,556 6,660 0.14% 0.61%
March 31, 2021 4,032,716 26,856 2.66% 3,888,633 1,941 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
December 31, 2020 3,633,631 25,893 2.85% 3,438,444 2,011 7,801 0.23% 0.91%
September 30, 2020 3,422,564 27,223 3.18% 3,228,021 2,043 8,943 0.25% 1.11%
June 30, 2020 3,126,779 27,258 3.49% 2,992,494 4,479 10,230 0.60% 1.37%
March 31, 2020 3,269,859 35,671 4.36% 3,129,178 16,523 21,423 2.11% 2.74%
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 4,557,978 $ 90,279 2.64% $ 4,367,037 $ 5,067 $ 15,463 0.15% 0.47%
September 30, 2020 3,273,068 90,152 3.67% 3,116,564 23,045 40,596 0.99% 1.74%
(8 in thousands)

Net Interest Income Net Interest Spread
GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Basis Basis® Basis Basis®

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 32,599 $ 31,351 2.53% 2.43%
June 30, 2021 27,698 22,594 2.46% 1.99%
March 31, 2021 24,915 20,871 2.46% 2.04%
December 31, 2020 23,882 18,093 2.62% 1.94%
September 30, 2020 25,180 18,280 2.93% 2.07%
June 30, 2020 22,779 17,028 2.89% 2.12%
March 31, 2020 19,148 14,248 2.25% 1.62%
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 85212 $ 74,816 2.49% 2.17%
September 30, 2020 67,107 49,556 2.68% 1.93%

(1) Portfolio yields and costs of borrowings presented in the tables above and the tables on pages 30 and 31 are calculated based on the
average balances of the underlying investment portfolio/borrowings balances and are annualized for the periods presented. Average
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balances for quarterly periods are calculated using two data points, the beginning and ending balances.
(2) Economic interest expense and economic net interest incpmeeented in the table above and the tables on page 31 includes the effect
of our derivative instrument hedges for only the periods presented.
(3) Represents interest cost of our borrowings and the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period divided by average

RMBS.
(4) Economic net interest spread is calculated by subtracting average economic cost of funds from realized yield on average RMBS.

Interest Income and Average Asset Yield

Our interestincome for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $90.3 million and $90.2 million, respectively.
had ¥Werage RMBS holdingsof $4,558.0 million and $3,273.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The yield on our portfoliowas 2.64% and 3.67% for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2021 and2020, respectively.
ffernine months ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2020, there was a $0.1 million
increase ininterestincome due to the $1,284.9million increasein average RMBS, partially offset by the 103 bps decreasein the

yieldes RMBS.

Our interestincome forthe three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 was $34.2 million and $27.2 million, respectively.
had W%rage RMBS holdingsof $5,136.3 million and $3,422.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The yield on our portfoliowas 2.66% and 3.18% for the threemonths ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
theptedyalpntes ended September 30, 2021 as compared to the threemonths ended September30, 2020, there was a $6.9 million
increase ininterestincome duetloe $1,713.8million increasein average RMBS, partially offset by the 52 bps decreasein the yieldon
average RMBS.

The table below presentsthe average portfolio size, income and yields of our respectivesub-portfolios, consisting of structured
and RVBBSIBS, for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, and for eachquarter of 2021 to dateand 2020.

(3 in thousands)

Average RMBS Held Interest Income Realized Yield on Average RMBS
PT Structured PT Structured PT Structured
RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total

Three Months Ended

September 30,2021 $ 5,016,550 $ 119,781 $ 5,136,331 $ 33,111 $ 1,058 $ 34,169 2.64% 3.53% 2.66%
June 30, 2021 4,436,135 68,752 4,504,887 29,286 (32) 29,254 2.64% (0.18)%  2.60%
March 31, 2021 3,997,965 34,751 4,032,716 26,869 (13) 26,856 2.69% (0.15)%  2.66%
December 31, 2020 3,603,885 29,746 3,633,631 25,933 (40) 25,893 2.88% (0.53)% 2.85%
September 30, 2020 3,389,037 33,527 3,422,564 27,021 202 27,223 3.19% 241%  3.18%
June 30, 2020 3,088,603 38,176 3,126,779 27,004 254 27,258 3.50% 2.67%  3.49%
March 31, 2020 3,207,467 62,392 3,269,859 35,286 385 35,671 4.40% 2.47%  4.36%
Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2021 $ 4,483,550 $ 74,428 $ 4,557,978 $ 89,266 $ 1,013 $ 90,279 2.65% 1.81%  2.64%
September 30, 2020 3,228,369 44,699 3,273,068 89,311 841 90,152 3.69% 2.51% 3.67%

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average outstanding borrowings of $4,367.0 million and $3,116.6 million and total interest expense of $5.1 million and
millfdB310r the nine monthsended September30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Our average costof funds was 0.15% for the nine
BRI S eptember30, 2021, compared to 0.99% for the comparableperiod in 2020. The $18.0 million decreasein interest expense
W@ to the 84 bps decreasein the averagecost of funds, partially offset by the$1,250.5 million increasein average outstanding
borrewiRgnine months ended September30, 2021 as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2020.

Our economic interest expense was $15.5 million and $40.6 millionfor the ninemonths ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
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respectively. Therewas a 127 bps decreasein the averageeconomic cost of fundsto 0.47% for the nine months ended September 30,
2021 from 1.74% for the nine months ended September 30, 2020.

We had averageoutstanding borrowings of $4,864.3 million and $3,228.0 million and total interestexpense of $1.6 million and
mill#&hdor the three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Ouraverage cost of fundswas 0.13% and 0.25% for
thegfths ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Therewas a 12bps decreasein the average cost of fundsand a $1,636.3
million increasein average outstanding borrowings during the three months ended September 30, 2021, compared to the threemonths
ended September30, 2020.

Our economic interest expense was $2.8 million and $8.9 millionfor the threemonths ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Therewas a 88 bps decrease in the averageeconomic cost of fundsto 0.23% for the three monthsended September30,
2021 from 1.11% for the threemonths ended September 30, 2020.

Since all of our repurchaseagreements are short-term,changes in market ratesdirectly affectour interestexpense. Ouraverage
of fua®8s calculated on a GAAP basis was 4 bps above the average one-month LIBOR and 3 bps below the average six-month LIBOR
fhe quarterended September30, 2021. Our average economic cost of fundswas 14 bps above the average one-monthLIBOR and 7
BB6ve the average six-month LIBOR forthe quarterended September30, 2021. The average term to maturityof the outstanding
repurchase agreements decreased to 30 days at September30, 2021 from 31 daysat December31, 2020.

The tables below presentthe average balance of borrowings outstanding, interest expense andaverage costof funds, and average
one-month and six-monthLIBOR ratesfor the ninemonths ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, and for eachquarter in 2021 to date

and0 on botha GAAP and economic basis.

(8 in thousands)

Average Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds
Balance of GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Borrowings Basis Basis Basis Basis

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 4,864,287 $ 1,570 $ 2,818 0.13% 0.23%
June 30, 2021 4,348,192 1,556 6,660 0.14% 0.61%
March 31, 2021 3,888,633 1,941 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
December 31, 2020 3,438,444 2,011 7,801 0.23% 0.91%
September 30, 2020 3,228,021 2,043 8,943 0.25% 1.11%
June 30, 2020 2,992,494 4,479 10,230 0.60% 1.37%
March 31, 2020 3,129,178 16,523 21,423 2.11% 2.74%
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021 $ 4,367,037 $ 5,067 $ 15,463 0.15% 0.47%
September 30, 2020 3,116,564 23,045 40,596 0.99% 1.74%

Average GAAP Cost of Funds  Average Economic Cost of Funds

Relative to Average Relative to Average
Average LIBOR One-Month Six-Month One-Month Six-Month
One-Month _Six-Month LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2021 0.09% 0.16% 0.04% (0.03)% 0.14% 0.07%
June 30, 2021 0.10% 0.18% 0.04% (0.04)% 0.51% 0.43%
March 31, 2021 0.13% 0.23% 0.07% (0.03)% 0.49% 0.39%
December 31, 2020 0.15% 0.27% 0.08% (0.04)% 0.76% 0.64%
September 30, 2020 0.17% 0.35% 0.08% (0.10)% 0.94% 0.76%
June 30, 2020 0.55% 0.70% 0.05% (0.10)% 0.82% 0.67%
March 31, 2020 1.34% 1.43% 0.77% 0.68% 1.40% 1.31%
Nine Months Ended
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September 30, 2021 0.10% 0.19% 0.05% (0.04)% 0.37% 0.28%
September 30, 2020 0.68% 0.83% 0.31% 0.16% 1.06% 0.91%

Gains or Losses

The table below presentsour gains or losses for the nineand three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30,

2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
Realized (losses) gains on sales of RMBS $ (3,068)$  (24,522)$ 21,454 $ 2,977 $ 498 $ 2,479
Unrealized (losses) gains on RMBS (107,386) 38,440 (145,826) (11,239) 1,168 (12,407)
Total (losses) gains on RMBS (110,454) 13,918 (124,372) (8,262) 1,666 (9,928)
Gains (losses) on interest rate futures 852 (13,161) 14,013 574 (119) 693
Gains (losses) on interest rate swaps 12,446 (67,713) 80,159 3,000 489 2,511
Gains (losses) on payer swaptions (short positions) 3,507 (1,561) 5,068 2,295 (672) 2,967
Gains (losses) on payer swaptions (long positions) 5,477 (3,287) 8,764 1,767 914 853
Gains (losses) on interest rate floors 1,345 - 1,345 45 - 45
Gains (losses) on TBA securities (short positions) 864 (6,282) 7,146 (2,306) 95 (2,401)
(Losses) gains on TBA securities (long positions) (8,559) 4,469 (13,028) - 3,336 (3,336)
(Losses) gains on U.S. Treasury securities (short - (95) 95 - 36 (36)
Total (losses) gains from derivative instruments 15,932 (87,630) 103,562 5,375 4,079 1,296

We invest in RMBS with the intent to earn netincome from the realizedyield on thoseassets overtheir related funding and
costbegign®t for thepurpose of making short term gains from sales. However, we have sold, and may continueto sell, existing
assgifrénewassets, whichour managementbelieves mighthave higherrisk-adjustedreturns inlight of currentor anticipatedinterest
fatRSal governmentprograms or general economic conditionsor to manageour balance sheet as partof our asset/liability
BaatagonIdnting the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, we received proceeds of $2,598.9 million and $2,692.2
reiiwtively, from the sales of RMBS. Most of thesesales duringthe nine months ended September 30, 2020 occurred during the
BEPBE March2020 as we sold assets in order to maintain sufficient cash and liquidityand reduce risk associatedwith the market
Bronght aboutby COVID-19. During the three monthsended September30, 2021 and 2020, we received proceeds of $918.0 million

8668.9 million, respectively, fromthe sales of RMBS.

Realized andunrealized gains and losses on RMBS are driven in part by changesin yields and interestrates, whichaffect the
of tH¥id8gritiesin our portfolio. The unrealizedgains and losses on RMBS also include the premium lostas a result of prepayments
e underlying mortgages, decreasing unrealized gains orincreasing unrealized losses as speeds or premiums increase. Gains and
tssAserest rate futures contracts are affected by changes in implied forward rates duringthe reportifgpetibtk below presents
historical interest rate data for each quarter endduring 2021 to date and 2020.

5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 30 Year Three

U.S. Treasury U.S. Treasury Fixed-Rate Fixed-Rate Month

Ratd? RatdV Mortgage Raf  Mortgage Raf® LIBOR

September 30, 2021 1.00% 1.53% 2.18% 2.90% 0.12%
June 30, 2021 0.87% 1.44% 2.27% 2.98% 0.13%
March 31, 2021 0.94% 1.75% 2.39% 3.08% 0.19%
December 31, 2020 0.36% 0.92% 2.22% 2.68% 0.23%
September 30, 2020 0.27% 0.68% 2.39% 2.89% 0.24%
June 30, 2020 0.29% 0.65% 2.60% 3.16% 0.31%
March 31, 2020 0.38% 0.70% 2.89% 3.45% 1.10%

(1) Historical 5 and 10 Year U.S. Treasury Rates are obtained from quoted end of day prices on the Chicago Board Options Exchange.
(2) Historical 30 Year and 15 Year Fixed Rate Mortgage Rates are obtained from Freddie Mac’s Primary Mortgage Market Survey.
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(3) Historical LIBOR is obtained from the Intercontinental Exchange Benchmark Administration Ltd.
Expenses

For the nine and three monthsended September 30, 2021, the Company’s total operatingexpenses were
$10ppridkionaetly$3.7 million, respectively, comparedto approximately $7.7 million and $2.8 million,respectively, for

dmelithmee months ended September30, 2020. The table below presents a breakdown of operating expenses for the nine
@m@e months ended September30, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30, Three Months Ended September 30,

2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
Management fees $ 5,569 $ 3,897 $ 1,672 $ 2,156 $ 1,252 $ 904
Overhead allocation 1,189 1,072 117 390 377 13
Accrued incentive compensation 884 (117) 1,001 259 158 101
Directors fees and liability insurance 874 750 124 279 242 37
Audit, legal and other professional fees 832 841 ©) 212 240 (28)
Direct REIT operating expenses 1,024 852 172 309 406 97)
Other administrative 514 451 63 69 174 (105)
Total expenses $ 10,886 $ 7,746 $ 3,140 $ 3,674 $ 2,849 $ 825

We are externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”) pursuantto the terms of a management
agreement. The management agreement has been renewed through February 20, 2022 and provides for automatic one-year
ptensiomereafter and is subject to certain termination rights. Under the terms of the management agreement, the Manager is
responsible for administering the business activities and day-to-day operations of the Company. The Manager receives a monthly
management fee in the amount of:

One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month end equity, as defined in the management
agreamentsh of 1.25% of the Company’s month end equity that is greater than $250 million and less than or equal to $500
million, and

e One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month end equity that is greater than $500 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf and to pay the Manager the
Company’s pro rata portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management agreement. Should the Company terminate the
management agreement without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination fee equal to three times the average annual
feanageidfnkd in the management agreement, before or on the last day of the term of the agreement.

The following table summarizes the management fee and overhead allocation expenses for each quarter in 2021 to date and
2020.

($ in thousands)

Average Average Advisory Services
Orchid Orchid Management Overhead

Three Months Ended MBS Equity Fee Allocation Total

September 30, 2021 $ 5,136,331 $ 672,384 $ 2,156 $ 390 $ 2,546
June 30, 2021 4,504,887 542,679 1,792 395 2,187
March 31, 2021 4,032,716 456,687 1,621 404 2,025
December 31, 2020 3,633,631 387,503 1,384 442 1,826
September 30, 2020 3,422,564 368,588 1,252 377 1,629
June 30, 2020 3,126,779 361,093 1,268 348 1,616
March 31, 2020 3,269,859 376,673 1,377 347 1,724
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Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2021 $ 4,557,978 $ 557,250 $ 5,569 $ 1,189 $ 6,758
September 30, 2020 3,273,068 368,785 3,897 1,072 4,969
Financial Condition:

Mortgage-Backed Securities

As of September30, 2021, our RMBS portfolio consisted of $5,601.4 million of Agency RMBSat fair valueand had a weighted
average couponon assets of 3.02%. During the nine months ended September30, 2021, we received principal repayments of $413.0
million comparedto $384.3 million for the ninemonths ended September 30, 2020. The average three month prepayment speeds for
tifarters ended September30, 2021 and 2020 were 12.4% and 17.0%, respectively.

The following table presents the 3-month constant prepaymentrate (“CPR”) experienced on our structuredand PT
subBMBSlios, on an annualized basis, forthe quarterly periods presented.CPR is a methodof expressing the prepayment
rate for amortgage pool that assumes that a constant fraction of the remainingprincipal is prepaid each month or year.
Specifically, the CPR in the chart below represents the three month prepaymentrate of the securities in the respectiveasset
category.

Structured

PT RMBS RMBS Total
Three Months Ended Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%)
September 30, 2021 9.8 25.1 12.4
June 30, 2021 10.9 29.9 12.9
March 31, 2021 9.9 40.3 12.0
December 31, 2020 16.7 44.3 20.1
September 30, 2020 14.3 40.4 17.0
June 30, 2020 13.9 35.3 16.3
March 31, 2020 9.8 22.9 11.9

The followingtables summarizecertain characteristicsof the Company’sPT RMBS and structuredRMBS as of September 30,
and Betkmber31, 2020:

($ in thousands)

Weighted
Percentage Average
of Weighted Maturity
Fair Entire Average in Longest
Asset Category Value Portfolio Coupon Months Maturity
September 30, 2021
Fixed Rate RMBS $ 5,458,562 97.4% 2.96% 342 1-Oct-51
Total Mortgage-backed Pass-through 5,458,562 97.4% 2.96% 342 1-Oct-51
Interest-Only Securities 140,078 2.5% 3.39% 250  25-Aug-51
Inverse Interest-Only Securities 2,783 0.1% 3.75% 304  15-Jun-42
Total Structured RMBS 142,861 2.6% 3.40% 253 25-Aug-51
Total Mortgage Assets $ 5,601,423 100.0% 3.02% 326 1-Oct-51
December 31, 2020
Fixed Rate RMBS $ 3,560,746 95.5% 3.09% 339 1-Jan-51
Fixed Rate CMOs 137,453 3.7% 4.00% 312 15-Dec-42
Total Mortgage-backed Pass-through 3,698,199 99.2% 3.13% 338 1-Jan-51
Interest-Only Securities 28,696 0.8% 3.98% 268  25-May-50
Total Structured RMBS 28,696 0.8% 3.98% 268  25-May-50
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Total Mortgage Assets $ 3,726,895 100.0% 3.19% 333 1-Jan-51

($ in thousands)

September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Percentage of Percentage of
Agency Fair Value Entire Portfolio Fair Value Entire Portfolio
Fannie Mae $ 4,315,090 77.0% $ 2,733,960 73.4%
Freddie Mac 1,286,333 23.0% 992,935 26.6%
Total Portfolio $ 5,601,423 100.0% $ 3,726,895 100.0%

September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Weighted Average Pass-through Purchase Price $ 107.61 $ 107.43
Weighted Average Structured Purchase Price $ 15.53 $ 20.06
Weighted Average Pass-through Current Price $ 106.88 $ 108.94
Weighted Average Structured Current Price $ 13.40 $ 10.87
Effective Duratiéh 3.350 2.360

(1) Effective duration is the approximate percentage change in price for a 100 bps change in rates. An effective duration of 3.350 indicates that
aiterest rate increase of 1.0% would be expected to cause a 3.350% decrease in the value of the RMBS in the Company’s investment
po8éptianber 30, 2021. An effective duration of 2.360 indicates that an interest rate increase of 1.0% would be expected to cause a 2.360%
decrease in the value of the RMBS in the Company’s investment portfolio at December 31, 2020. These figures include the structured
sechripiestfolio, but do not include the effect of the Company’s funding cost hedges. Effective duration quotes for individual investments
afftained from The Yield Book, Inc.

The following table presents a summary of portfolio assets acquired during the nine months ended September30,
and 202D, including securities purchased duringthe period that settled after the end of the period, if any.

($ in thousands)

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average  Average Average Average
Total Cost Price Yield Total Cost Price Yield
Pass-through RMBS $ 4,871,121 % 106.96 1.56% $ 3,012,072 $ 107.22 1.67%
Structured RMBS 125,728 13.04 3.80% - - -

Borrowings

As of September30, 2021, we had establishedborrowing facilities in the repurchase agreement market with a number of
banle@BHASERE financial institutionsand had borrowingsin place with23 of these counterparties. None of theselenders are affiliated
Wétltompany. Theseborrowings are secured by the Company’sRMBS and cash, and bear interestat prevailingmarket rates. We
belie¥giblishedrepurchase agreement borrowing facilities provide borrowingcapacity in excess of our needs.

As of September30, 2021, we had obligationsoutstanding under the repurchase agreements of approximately $5,213.9 million
net WétBBtedaverage borrowingcost of 0.13%. The remainingmaturity of our outstandingrepurchase agreement obligationsranged
fresrB49 days, with a weighted average remainingmaturity of30 days. Securing the repurchaseagreement obligations as of
Sepronbeie RMBS with an estimatedfair value, including accrued interest, of approximately$5,430.3 million and a weighted
AYAREE of 344 months,and cash pledged to counterpartiesof approximately$47.5 million. Through October 28,2021, we have
bBBnto maintainour repurchasefacilities with comparableterms to those that existed at September 30, 2021 with maturitiesthrough
September 14, 2022.

The table below presents information about our period end, maximum and average balances of borrowings for each quarter in
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2021 to date and 2020.

($ in thousands)

Difference Between Ending

Ending Maximum Average Borrowings and
Balance of Balance of Balance of Average Borrowings

Three Months Ended Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Amount Percent

September 30, 2021 $ 5,213,869 $ 5,214,254 $ 4,864,287 $ 349,582 7.19%
June 30, 2021 4,514,704 4,517,953 4,348,192 166,512 3.83%
March 31, 2021 4,181,680 4,204,935 3,888,633 293,047 7.54%
December 31, 2020 3,595,586 3,597,313 3,438,444 157,142 4.57%
September 30, 2020 3,281,303 3,286,454 3,228,021 53,282 1.65%
June 30, 2020 3,174,739 3,235,370 2,992,494 182,245 6.09%
March 31, 2020 2,810,250 4,297,621 3,129,178 (318,928) (10.19)%)

(1) The lower ending balance relative to the average balance during the quarter ended March 31, 2020 reflects the disposal of RMBS pledged
a@dllateral in order to maintain cash and liquidity in response to the dislocations in the financial and mortgage markets resulting from the
economic impacts of COVID-19. During the quarter ended March 31, 2020, the Company’s investment in RMBS decreased $642.1
million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is our abilityto turn non-cashassets into cash, purchaseadditional investments,repay principaland intereston
fundeveahéngsfulfill margincalls and pay dividends. Our principalimmediate sources of liquidity include cash balances,
sosswmdBbedowings under repurchaseagreements. Our borrowingcapacity willvary overtime as the market valueof our interest
earning assetsvaries. Our balancesheet also generates liquidity on an on-goingbasis throughpayments of principal and interestwe
receive on our RMBS portfolio. Management believes thatwe currentlyhave sufficientliquidity and capital resources available for
fehthsition of additionalinvestmentsconsistent with the size and nature of our existingRMBS portfolio, (b) the repaymentson
badreeyit@payment of dividends to the extentrequired for our continuedqualificationas a REIT. We may also generate liquidity
feomminsy selling our equity or debt securitiesin public offerings or private placements.

Because our PT RMBS portfolio consists entirely of governmentand agency securities, we do not anticipate having difficulty
converting our assetsto cash shouldour liquidityneeds ever exceed our immediately available sources of cash. Our structured
BvkBstio also consistsentirely of governmentalagency securities,although they typicallydo not tradewith comparablebid / ask
PTRNSBS. However, we anticipatethat we wouldbe able to liquidate suchsecurities readily, evenin distressedmarkets, although
woeuld likelydo so at prices belowwhere such securities could be sold in amore stable market. To enhance our liquidityeven
fHagheledge a portion of our structuredRMBS as part of arepurchase agreement funding, but retain the cash inlieu of acquiring
adeitionalthis way we can, ata modest cost, retainhigher levelsof cash onhand and decrease the likelihoodwe will haveto sell
asdiisissed market in order toraise cash.

Our strategy for hedging our funding costs typicallyinvolves taking shortpositions in interestrate futures, treasury futures,
swapRlarastEdigate swaptionsor other instruments. When the market causes these short positions to decline in value we are required
Heet margin calls with cash. This canreduce ourliquidity positionto the extentother securitiesin our portfoliomove in pricein such
thwaWe donot receive enough cash via margin calls to offset the derivativerelated margincalls. If this wereto occur in sufficient
magnitude, the loss of liquidity might force us to reducethe size of the leveredportfolio, pledge additional structured securities to
faisds orrisk operatingthe portfoliowith less liquidity.

Our master repurchase agreements have no statedexpiration,but can be terminated at any time at our optionor at the option of
courth&party. However,once a definitiverepurchase agreement under a masterrepurchase agreement has been entered into, it
generdbbe terminated by either party. A negotiatedtermination can occur, but may involvea fee tobe paid by the party seeking to
terminate the repurchaseagreement transaction,as it did during the three months ended March 31, 2020.
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Under ourrepurchase agreement funding arrangements,we are requiredto post marginat the initiationof the borrowing. The
postBiRF8Ptesentsthe haircut,which is a percentage of the marketvalue of thecollateral pledged. To the extent the market valueof
tseet collateralizingthe financingtransaction declines, the market value of ourposted marginwill be insufficientand we will be
prteizgdi@onal collateral. Conversely, if the market value of theasset pledgedincreases in value, we would be over collateralizedand
Wweuld be entitled to have excess margin returnedto us by thecounterparty. Our lenders typically value our pledged securitiesdaily
tasure the adequacy of our margin and make margincalls as needed, as do we. Typically, but notalways, the parties agreeto a
fhiasABI@amount for margin calls so as to avoidthe need for nuisancemargin callson a daitbasisster repurchase agreements
do not specifythe haircut;rather haircutsare determinedon an individualrepurchase transactionbasis. Throughoutthe nine months
ended September30, 2021, haircuts on our pledged collateral remained stable and as of September30, 2021, our weightedaverage
haircut was approximately5.0% of the value of our collateral.

While we did not haveany TBAs at September 30, 2021, we do acquireTBAs from time to time. TBAs representa form of off-
shed?dl@ReRingand are accountedfor as derivativeinstruments.(See Note 4 to our Financial Statements in this Form10-Q for
dddifiopalour TBAs). Under certainmarket conditions, it may be uneconomical for us toroll our TBAs into future monthsand we
foaykeest make physicaldelivery of the underlyingsecurities. If we wererequired to take physicaldelivery tosettle a longTBA, we
Waldo fundour total purchase commitment with cash or other financing sources and our liquidity position couldbe negatively
impacted.

Our TBAs are also subject to margin requirementsgoverned by the Mortgage-BackedSecurities Division ("MBSD")of the
by olilGhaabel securities forward transaction agreements, which may establish margin levelsin excess of the MBSD. Such provisions
require thatwe establishan initial margin basedon the notionalvalue of theTBA, which is subjectto increase if the estimatedfair
YakieBfAs or the estimatedfair value of our pledgedcollateral declines. The MBSD has the solediscretion to determinethe value of
@BAs and of the pledgedcollateral securing suchcontracts. In the eventof a margin call, we must generally provide additional
tiodlsgenelinusiness day.

Settlement of our TBA obligations by taking delivery of the underlyingsecurities as well as satisfying margin requirementscould
negatively impact our liquidity position. However, since we do notuse TBA dollarroll transactionsas our primarysource of
baagingavie will haveadequate sources of liquidity to meet such obligations.

As discussed earlier, we investa portion of our capitalin structured Agency RMBS. We generally do not applyleverage to this
of oBPPIRFolio. The leverageinherent in structuredsecurities replaces theleverage obtained by acquiring PT securitiesand funding
thefe repurchasemarket. This structuredRMBS strategyhas been a core elementof the Company’soverall investmentstrategy since
inception. However, we have and may continue to pledge aportion of our structured RMBS in orderto raise our cash levels,but
gdhlenallpledge thesesecurities in order to acquire additional assets.

The followingtable summarizesthe effect on our liquidityand cash flows from contractual obligations for repurchase
inteagresipense aittrepurchase agreements.

(in thousands)

Obligations Maturing
Within One One to Three Three to Five More than

Year Years Years Five Years Total
Repurchase agreements $ 5,213,869 $ - $ - 3 - $ 5,213,869
Interest expense on repurchase agreemefits 1,281 - - - 1,281
Totals $ 5,215,150 $ - % -3 - $ 5,215,150

(1) Interest expenseon repurchase agreements is based on currentinterest ratesas of September30, 2021 and the remainingterm of the liabilities
existing at that date.

In future periods, we expectto continue to finance our activitiesin a manner that is consistentwith our current operationsthrough
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repurchase agreements. As of September30, 2021, we had cash and cash equivalentsof $424.1 million. We generated cash flows of
$497.8 millionfrom principaland interestpayments on our RMBS and had averagerepurchase agreements outstanding of $4,367.0
#iiHifthe nine months ended September30, 2021.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 23, 2020, we entered into the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement with three sales agents pursuant to
we dshiglbffer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $200,000,000 of shares of our common stock in
thansaeti®deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a total of 3,170,727 shares
thwd@anuary 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of $19.8 million, and net proceeds of approximately
$19.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in August2020.

On August 4, 2020, we entered into the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement with four sales agents pursuant to which
coulé®ffer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $150,000,000 of shares of our common stock in transactions
thate deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a total of 27,493,650 shares under
thagust 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $150.0 million, and net proceeds of
approximately $147.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in June 2021.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement with J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“J.P.
relatMgrgamio,offer and sale of 7,600,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock
fherCompany pursuant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.20 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a 30-
#p¥ion to purchase up to an additional 1,140,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P.
dergifed in full on January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 8,740,000 shares of our common stock occurred on January
2621, with proceeds to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, we entered into the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement with J.P. Morgan, relating to the offer and sale
8,000£000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock from the Company pursuant to the
March 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.45 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an
additional 1,200,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on March
3021. The closing of the offering of 9,200,000 shares of our common stock occurred on March 5, 2021, with proceeds to us of
approximately $50.0 million, net of offering expenses payable.

On June 22, 2021, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement”) with
saledQigients pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $250,000,000 of shares of
evimmon stock in transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. Through
September 30, 2021, we issued a total of 41,568,338 shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate
groseeds of approximately $211.0 million, and net proceeds of approximately $207.5 million, after commissions and fees.
fbsggaeier 30, 2021 and through October 29, 2021, we issued a total of 7,838,998 shares under the June 2021 Equity
Ristsdhnéiefor aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $39.0 million, and net proceeds of approximately $38.4 million, after
commissions and fees.

Outlook

Economic Summary

The effects of COVID-19 continuedto dominate economic activity during the third quarterof 2021, particularlythe
varibrelthat first emergedin earnest duringJuly. Daily new infectionsfrom the Delta variant rose rapidly during the
appraeathts peak in early September and have been slowlyfalling since. COVID related deaths have followed a similar
pattern. Progress onvaccinations has slowed, and most of the new cases were among the unvaccinated. This has ledto
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various measuresby governments and corporationsto mandate employeesreceive vaccinations. The net effectof a
spreading virusand a reluctance on the part of many to get vaccinated has been subduedjob growth during the third
goatdterDiis is particularlytrue among workerswith high exposure to customers, such as those in the leisure and
hudpstalésy The various forms of pandemicrelated supplementalunemploymentinsurance ended in early September, so
fowth may accelerate in the fourth quarter. In the interim,the combination of a reluctance to return to work on the part
ofany individuals, coupled with sufficient incomevia unemploymentinsurance, has resultedin both robust demand for
goddervices and shortages of labor inmany industries. Coupled witha demand/supply imbalance in favor of demand for
many commoditiesand parts, the combination of the two forces hasled to severe supply shortagesacross the economy.
Jimply imbalancesfor goods and services have in turnled to price pressures for both, drivinginflation to multi-decade
itgh¥ed chairman,among other members of the Federal Open Market Committee (“FOMC”) have maintained these
inflationary forces are temporary and will ease once the effects of the COVID pandemic fade and workerscan return to
Yetlas implied by market pricing of inflation linked U.S. Treasury securities and opinions expressed by various market
participants, inflation may prove to be more thantransitory, and of late even FOMC members themselves have admitted
inflation hasremained highlonger than they had anticipated.

Over the course of the third quarter and into the fourth,expectations for growthin the U.S. economy during the third
quarter continuedto decline. On October 28, 2021, the advanced read on gross domestic productgrowth forthe U.S.
economy wasreported tobe 2.0%. Expectations for growth during the quarter were approximately 4% to 7% atthe
béghengngrter. Asnoted above, job growthhas decelerated and supply constraints of goods and services are keeping
hevialitguppressed. Over the course of the balance of the yearit should becomeapparent whetheror not the supply
constraints, especially with respectto labor, are transitoryor not now that essentiallyall forms of pandemicrelated
unemployment insurance have ended and the new cases of the Delta variant of the COVID virus are subsiding. Thisin
stmould also answer the question about the transitorynature of inflation.

The housing market remains robust as evidencedby sales of new and existinghomes, as well as new home
Howenwstrastimme prices haverisen at 10%— 20% over the last yearand supply shortages of goods and materials are
constraining new home construction, this trend may slow. If this wereto occur, it would be beneficial for the Company’s
PdviBSlio as prepaymentsrelated to housing turnover may decelerate.

Legislative Response andthe Fed

Congress passedthe CARES Actquickly inresponse tothe pandemic’s emergence inthe spring of 2021and followed
addisishal legislation over the ensuing months. However, as certain provisions of the CARES Act expired, such as
supplemental unemployment insurance in July of 2021, there appearedto be a need for additional stimulus for the
deahwrith tihe surge in the pandemic that occurred as cold weather set in, particularlyover the Christmasholiday. As
mentioned above, the Federal government eventually passed an additional stimulus package in late December of 2020 and
again in March of 2021. Inaddition, the Fed has provided, and continuesto provide, as much supportto the markets and
thenomy asit can within the constraints of its mandate. During the third quarter of 2020, the Fed unveiled a new
puliwtdipmework focused on averageinflationrate targeting that allows the Fed Fundsrate to remain quite low, evenif
inflafeated to temporarilysurpass the 2% target level. Further, the Fed has indicated that it will look past the presence of
sight labor markets, shouldthey be presentat the time. This marksa significant shift from their prior policy framework,
whsdiocused on the unemploymentrate as a key indicator of impending inflation. Adherence to this policy could steepen
theS. Treasury curve as short-termrates couldremain low for a considerableperiod butlonger-termrates couldrise given
Hd’s intention to let inflationpotentially run above 2% in the future as the economy more fully recovers. The response of
T&asury rates appeared to follow this pattern preciselyduring the first quarter of 2021, but have sincereversed since early
the second quarter2021.

Interest Rates

Interest rates across the U.S. Treasury curve and U.S. dollar swap curve werelittle changed during the third quarter of
2021. The onlynotable developmentwithin therates complex was the slight flattening of both curves between the five-

and 39



30-year points as the market anticipates the eventual tapering of asset purchases beginning in the fourth quarter of 2021
imcteases to the Fed fundsrate in eitherthe second half of 2022 or early 2023.

As described above, the Deltavariant of the COVID virus has dominated economic activity, both during the third
202quartegeherallysince March of 2020. However, the FOMC and the Fed chairman have looked through the effects of
femdemic and see the impact fading. At the conclusionof the SeptemberFOMC meeting, the Fed chairmanwas not
ambiguous in expressing his view that the economy had made “substantial further progress”towards achievingtheir dual
mandates of price stabilityand full employment. As a result, the Fed appearedto indicate that it was close to commencing
thpering of their asset purchases. More specifically, the Fed chairmanindicated they are likely to begin the tapering of
dssit purchases this yearand that they would likely complete the tapering by mid next year. The Fed alsoreleased their
summary of economic projections,or “Dot Plot” as it is known, at the conclusionof the meeting and, as was the case with
flmme FOMC Dot Plot, the Dot Plotindicated FOMC members anticipatedincreasing the Fed Fundsrate sooner and by a
largrmt than the market anticipated. Nine of the eighteen FOMC members, as evidenced by the Dot Plot released in
September, expectthe Fed toincrease the funds rate at least oncein 2022. This surprisedthe market, and the market
pfitongard short-termrates quickly adjusted toreflect these expectations.

As the fourth quarter hasunfolded and inflationary pressures have continued to build, market pricing of forward short-
rateselmve continued toreflect additionalincreases tothe Fed Fundsrate. Further, as inflation persists at higher levels and
continues to challenge the Fed’s assertion that it will prove transitory, longer maturity rates have moved higher so farin
fharth quarter. The level of the 10-year U.S. Treasuryis close to matching the year-to-date high yield established on
Rxth 31,

The Agency RMBS Market

Performance for the Agency RMBS market for the third quarter was a modest 0.01%, generally in-linewith most
assetthlasses. The excessreturn to comparableduration U.S. Treasuries and swaps forthe Agency RMBS sub-index was
0.1% for both for the quarter. Within the Agency RMBS sector, higher coupon fixed rate securities outperformed lower
coupons, specificallythe coupon currentlyin widespread production. Total returns for the third quarter for 2.0% and
RebGities were -0.4% and 0.00%, respectively. For 3.0% and 3.5% coupons the returns were 0.6% and 0.5%,
dspeytirealyand fifteen-year securities both returned 0.1% for the quarter. As mentionedabove, at the conclusion of the
September FOMC meeting the chairman made it quite clearthe Fed was likely tobegin to tapertheir asset purchases this
gmdrconclude the $40 billionper month purchasesof Agency RMBS assetsby mid-2022. Given the lengthof time the Fed
baen supporting the Agency RMBS market, coupled withbanks that are flush with deposits thatneed to be invested, price
levels inthe Agency RMBS market were quite rich prior to this development, especially the coupons the Fed routinely
purchases, which have been the 2.0% and 2.5% couponspredominantly. These factors are what drove the relative
underperformanceof these two coupons forthe quarterand has continuedto do so into the fourth quarter.

The second driverof Agency RMBS performance, both for the third quarter of 2021 andbeyond, is, as always, the
prepaysleifits. With interestrates relativelysteady during the third quarterand, aftersuch a prolongedperiod of low
intesetepayment speeds on highercoupon, premium priced securitieswere expectedto eventually slow. This appearsto
bi@mally happening,as evidenced by the Augustand September prepayment reports, releasedin Septemberand October,
respectively. As interestrates have moved higherso far inthe fourth quarter, approaching levels last seen at the
tom firstiguanfer, market participants expect this trend to continue,and whichis reflectedin the performanceof these
qaupenso date.

Recent Legislativeand Regulatory Developments
The Fed conducted large scale overnight repo operations from late 2019 until July 2020 to address disruptionsin the

Treddufvy, Agency debtand Agency MBS financing markets. These operations ceased inJuly 2020 afterthe central bank
successfully tamed volatile funding costs that had threatenedto cause disruptionacross the financial system.
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The Fed hastaken a numberof other actions to stabilize markets as a result of the impacts of the COVID-19
Mammimade2i20ithe Fed announceda $700 billion asset purchase program to provide liquidityto the U.S. Treasury and
REEBSymarkets. The Fed alsolowered the Fed Funds rate to a range of 0.0% — 0.25%, after having already loweredthe
Fadds rate by 50 bps earlierin the month. Later that same month the Fed announceda program to acquire U.S. Treasuries
and Agency RMBS in theamounts needed to support smooth market functioning. With these purchases, market
topdétvedssubstantially. Currently, the Fed is committed to purchasing $80 billion of U.S. Treasuries and $40 billion of
REEBSyeach month. Chairman Powell and the Fed have reiteratedtheir commitment to this level of asset purchasesat
averting since their meeting on June 30,2020. At the September 2021 meeting, the Fed generallyassessed that, provided
thateconomicrecovery remainedbroadly ontrack, a gradualtapering processthat concluded around the middle of next
yeauld likely be appropriate. The Fed noted that if adecisionto begin tapering purchases occurred at the next meeting, the
process of tapering could commence with the monthly purchase calendarsbeginning in either mid-Novemberor mid-
December. The Fedhas taken variousother stepsto support certain other fixed income markets, to support mortgage
servicersand to implementvarious portionsof the CoronavirusAid, Relief, and Economic Security (“CARES”)Act.

The CARES Act was passed by Congress and signed into law on March 27, 2020. This over $2 trillion COVID-19
bill reliedng other things, provided fordirect paymentsto each Americanmaking up to $75,000 a year, increased
unemployment benefits forup to fourmonths (ontop of state benefits), funding to hospitals and health providers,loans
mmdkstments to businesses, states and municipalitiesand grantsto the airline industry. On April 24, 2020, President Trump
signed an additional funding bill into law that provided an additional $484 billion of fundingto individuals,small
huspitsledealth care providers and additional coronavirus testing efforts. Various provisions of the CARES Act began to
expire inJuly 2020, including a moratorium on evictions, expanded unemploymentbenefits, and a moratoriumon
fonealoguses, 2020, President Trump issued Executive Order 13945, directing the Department of Health and Human
fSmrGensers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”), the Department of Housing and Urban Development,and
Department of the Treasury to take measuresto temporarilyhalt residential evictions and foreclosures, including through
temporary financial assistance.

On December27, 2020, an additional $900 billion coronavirus aid package was signed into law as part of the
Apptopsatidated ct of 2021, providing for extensions of many of the CARES Actpolicies and programs as well as
neldéfichihe package provided for, among otherthings, direct payments to most Americanswith a grossincome ofless than
$75,000 a year, extensionof unemploymentbenefits throughMarch 14, 2021, funding for procurement of vaccines and
healtiders, loans to qualifiedbusinesses, funding forrental assistanceand funding forschools. OnJanuary 29, 2021, the
SBEd guidance extending eviction moratoriums for covered persons through March 31,2021, whichwas extended to July
3021. On August 26, 2021, the U.S. Supreme Court issued a decision ending the CDC eviction moratorium. In addition,
babruary 9, 2021, the FHFA announcedthat the foreclosuremoratoriumbegun underthe CARES Actfor loans backed by
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the eviction moratoriumfor real estate owned by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were
extended until March 31,2021, whichwas further extended through September 30, 2021. On July 30, 2021, the FHA
announced an extension of the evictionmoratorium through September 30, 2021 for foreclosed borrowers and other
andupseetd the expiration of the foreclosuremoratoriumon July 31, 2021.

On March 11, 2021, the $1.9 trillion American Rescue Plan Act 0f2021 was signedinto law. This stimulus program
furthered the Federal government’sefforts to stabilizethe economy and provide assistanceto sectors of the populationstill
suffering from the various physical and economic effects of the pandemic.

On September 30, 2019, the FHFA announced that Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were allowedto increase their
buffeapital$25 billion and $20 billion, respectively, from the prior limit of $3 billion each. On June 30, 2020, the FHFA
pelgpoeddirule on a new regulatory framework forthe GSEs which seeks to implementboth a risk-basedcapital
framimwerlendrage capital requirements. The final rule on the new capital framework for the GSEs was publishedin the
fedist#r in December 2020. On January 14, 2021, the U.S. Treasury and the FHFA executed letter agreementsallowing
(SEs to continueto retain capitalup to their regulatory minimums, including buffers, as prescribedin the Decemberrule.
These letter agreements provide, inpart, (i) there will be no exitfrom conservatorshipuntil all material litigationis settled
el GSE has common equity Tier 1 capital of at least3% of itsassets, (ii) the GSEs will comply withthe FHFA’s
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capital framework, (iii) higher-risksingle-family mortgage acquisitionswill be restrictedto currentlevels, and (iv) the
T&asury and the FHFA will establish a timeline and process for future GSE reform. However, no definitiveproposals or
legislation have been releasedor enacted withrespect to ending the conservatorship,unwinding the GSEs, or materially
reducing theroles of the GSEs in the U.S. mortgage market. OnJune 23, 2021, President Bidenremoved the director of
HdFA and appointed an acting director. On September14, 2021, the FHFA suspended certain provisionsadded to the
lgterments on January 14, 2021, includinglimits on the enterprises'cash windows, multifamily lending, loans with higher
cisdracteristics,and second homes and investmentproperties. The enterprises will continue to build capitalunder the
continuing provisions of the letteragreements. Additionally, the FHFA is reviewing the enterprise regulatory capital
firdresyperis to announce further actionin the near future.

In 2017, policymakersannounced that LIBOR will be replaced by December 31,2021. The directivewas spurred by
factttimt banks are uncomfortable contributing to the LIBOR panel given the shortage of underlying transactions on which
base levels and the liabilityassociated with submittingan unfounded level. The ICE Benchmark Administration, in its
aapatritinistratorof USD LIBOR, has confirmed that it will cease publicationof (i) the one-week and two-month USD
§di@FR immediately following the LIBOR publicationon December31, 2021, and (ii) the overnightand one, three,six
amchi2-USD LIBOR settings immediately following the LIBOR publicationon June 30, 2023. A joint statement by key
seghdaitics calls on banksto cease enteringinto new contractsthat use USD LIBOR as areference rate by no later than
December 31,2021. The Alternative Reference Rates Committee, a steering committee comprisedof large U.S. financial
institutions, has proposedreplacing USD-LIBORwith a new SOFR, a rate based on U.S. repotrading. Many banks
Hedtdvenay take four to five yearsto complete the transitionto SOFR, forcertain, despitethe 2021 deadline. We will
amaigerthe of this new rate carefully as it will potentially become the new benchmark for hedges and a range of interest
iatestments. At this time, however, no consensus exists asto what rate or rates may become accepted alternativesto
LIBOR.

Effective January 1, 2021, Fannie Mae, in alignmentwith Freddie Mac, will extend the timeframefor its delinquent
buytoarpolicy for Single-Family Uniform Mortgage-Backed Securities (UMBS) and Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS)
foomconsecutivelymissed monthly payments to twenty-four consecutively missed monthly payments (i.e.,24 months past
due). This new timeframe will apply to outstanding single-family pools and newly issued single-familypools and was first
reflected when January 2021 factors werereleased onthe fourth businessday in February2021.

For Agency RMBS investors,when a delinquentloan is bought out of a pool of mortgage loans, the removal of the
fronodre pool is the same as a total prepayment of the loan. The respective GSEs currently anticipate, however, that
delinquent loans will be repurchasedin most cases before the 24-monthdeadline under one of the followingexceptions
betod.

* aloan thatis paid infull, or wherethe relatedlien is releasedand/or the note debt is satisfied or forgiven;

* aloan repurchasedby a seller/servicerunder applicableselling and servicing requirements;

* aloan entering a permanent modification, which generally requires itto be removed from the MBS. During any
modification trial period, the loan will remain in the MBS until the trial period ends;

* aloan subjectto a shortsale or deed-in-lieuof foreclosure; or

* aloan referredto foreclosure.

Because of these exceptions, the GSEs currentlybelieve based on prevailing assumptions and market conditions this
change will have only amarginal impacton prepayment speeds, inaggregate. Cohort level impacts may vary. For
mamaphan half of loans referredto foreclosure are historicallyreferred within six months of delinquency. The degree to
spleieds are affected dependson delinquency levels, borrowerresponse, and referral to foreclosure timelines.

The scope and nature of the actionsthe U.S. governmentor the Fed will ultimatelyundertake are unknown and will
continue to evolve, especiallyin light of the COVID-19 pandemic, PresidentBiden’s new administration and the new
{Dothgreisited States.

Effect on Us
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Regulatory developments, movements in interestrates and prepaymentrates affectus in many ways, including the
following:

Effects on our Assets

A change inor eliminationof the guarantee structure of Agency RMBS may increase our costs (if, for example,
feesgimaraatzd or require us to change our investment strategy altogether. For example, the elimination of the guarantee
structure of Agency RMBS may cause usto change ourinvestment strategy to focus on non-AgencyRMBS, whichin turn
would require us to significantlyincrease our monitoring of the creditrisks of our investments in addition to interestrate
pnebaymentrisks.

Lower long-terminterest rates can affect the value of our Agency RMBS in a number of ways. If prepaymentrates are
relatively low (due, in part, to the refinancing problems describedabove), lowerlong-term interestrates can increasethe
whluiggher-coupon Agency RMBS. This is because investors typicallyplace a premium on assets with yields thatare
higheettlyaelds. Although lower long-term interestrates may increaseasset valuesin our portfolio,we may notbe able to
ilewedunds in similarly-yieldingassets.

If prepayment levels increase, the value of our Agency RMBS affected by such prepaymentsmay decline. This is
a prhecipadprepayment accelerates the effective term of an Agency RMBS, which would shorten the period during which
mvestor wouldreceive above-marketreturns (assumingthe yield onthe prepaid asset is higherthan market yields). Also,
prepayment proceeds may not be ableto be reinvestedin similar-yieldingassets. Agency RMBS backed by mortgages
iigh interestrates are more susceptibleto prepaymentrisk because holders of those mortgagesare most likelyto refinance
tolower rate. IOs and 110s, however, may be the types of Agency RMBS most sensitive to increased prepaymentrates.
Because theholder of an IO or IIOreceives no principal payments, the values of 10s and IIOs are entirely dependenton
thestence of a principal balance on the underlying mortgages. If the principalbalance is eliminated due to prepayment, IOs
iifds essentiallybecome worthless. Although increasedprepaymentrates can negativelyaffect the value of our I0s and
they,have the opposite effect on POs. Because POs act like zero-coupon bonds, meaning they are purchasedat a discount
their parvalue and have an effective interest rate based on the discount and the term of the underlyingloan, an increasein
prepayment rates would reduce the effectiveterm of our POs and acceleratethe yields earned on those assets, which
werddse ournet income.

Higher long-termrates can also affect the value of our Agency RMBS. As long-termrates rise, rates availableto
borrowers also rise. This tends to cause prepayment activity to slow and extend the expected average life of mortgage
thslrs. As the expected average life of the mortgage cash flowsincreases, coupled with higher discountrates, the value of
Agency RMBS declines. Some of the instruments the Company uses to hedge our Agency RMBS assets, such as interest
rate futures, swaps and swaptions,are stable average life instruments. This meansthat to the extent we use such
indiadgemsr Agency RMBS assets, our hedges may not adequately protect us from price declines, and therefore may
negatively impact ourbook value. It is forthis reason we use interest only securitiesin our portfolio. As interestrates rise,
¢kpected average life of these securities increases, causing generallypositive price movements as the number and size of
tlash flows increase the longer the underlying mortgages remainoutstanding. This makes interest only securities desirable
hedge instrumentsfor pass-through Agency RMBS.

As described above, the AgencyRMBS marketbegan to experiencesevere dislocationsin mid-March 2020 as a result
the edonomic, health and market turmoilbrought aboutby COVID-19.In March of 2020, the Fed announced that it would
purchase Agency RMBS and U.S. Treasuries inthe amounts neededto support smooth market functioning, which largely
stabilized the Agency RMBS market, acommitment it reaffirmed at all subsequentFed meetings. At the September2021
meeting, the Fed generally assessed that, provided thatthe economicrecovery remainedbroadly ontrack, a gradual
mapedsgthat concluded aroundthe middle of next year would likely be appropriate. The Fed noted that if a decisionto
bsiring purchasesoccurred atthe next meeting, the process of tapering could commence with the monthlypurchase
calendars beginningin either mid-November or mid-December. If the Fed modifies,reduces or suspendsits purchases of
Agency RMBS, our investment portfolio could be negatively impacted. Further, the moratoriums on foreclosures
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above will likely delay potential defaultson loans that would otherwisebe bought outof Agency MBS pools as described
above. Depending on the ultimateresolution of the foreclosures,when and ifit occurs, these loans may be removed from
powl into which they were securitized. If this were to occur, it would have the effect of delaying a prepayment on the
Seomitiryimtil suchtime. As the majority of the Company’s Agency RMBS assets were acquired ata premiumto par, this
teiltl to increase the realized yield on the asset in question.

Because webase our investmentdecisions on risk managementprinciplesrather than anticipated movements in
ratesntierastolatile interest rate environment we may allocate more capital to structured Agency RMBS with shorter
Wiediabiese these securities have a lower sensitivity to changes inlong-terminterest rates than otherasset classes. We may
attempt tomitigate our exposure to changes inlong-term interest rates by investing in I0s and I1Os, which typicallyhave
different sensitivitiesto changes in long-terminterest rates than PT RMBS, particularly PT RMBS backed by fixed-rate
mortgages.

Effects on our borrowing costs

We leverage our PT RMBS portfolio and a portion of our structured Agency RMBS with principal balances through
of sHwrtaserm repurchase agreement transactions. The interestrates on our debt are determinedby the shortterm interest
mtrkets. Anincrease inthe Fed Fundsrate or LIBOR would increase our borrowing costs, which could affect our interest
sptiead if thereis no correspondingincrease inthe interest we earn onour assets. This would be most prevalentwith
oespAgency RMBS backed by fixed rate mortgage loans because the interest rate on a fixed-ratemortgage loan does not
change eventhough marketrates may change.

In order to protect ournet interest margin againstincreases inshort-terminterest rates, we may enterinto interestrate
swaps, which economically convert our floating-rate repurchase agreement debt to fixed-rate debt, or utilizeother hedging
instruments such as Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futures contracts or interestrate swaptions.

Summary

Once again COVID-19dominated economicactivity this quarter. However, we may be at a crossroadsas the effects
the Dlelta variantappears tobe waning and the number of people with either a vaccinationand/or priorinfections of the
ginw. Pandemic relatedrelief measures such as supplementalunemployment insurance paymentsand foreclosure
moratoriums are essentially over. Hopefully the combination of all of these factors will lead to surging job growth and act
tpickly lessen the severe supply shortage of goods andlabor. This in turn should slow the stubbornly high inflation the
economy has suffered. If these events come to pass, the economy appears tobe positionedto perform very well, and the
Raslstated thatit will slowly remove the considerableaccommodation they have providedthe marketvia a tapering of their
asset purchases and eventuallyincreases to the Fed Fundsrate. If these events donot unfold and the supply shortages of
goods and laborremain, the economy will likely continue to suffer from elevated levels of inflation. Under this scenario
theeh of economicgrowth isless certain, and the path of monetary policy could prove to be quite challengingfor the Fed.

The performance of the Agency RMBS market was very modestin absolutereturns, at0.0% and 0.1% versus
durawonparabéstrates and swaps. Performance for the sectorwas generally in line with other sectors of the fixed income
markets. Within the Agency RMBS universe, performance was skewed towards higher coupons and away from lower
toatprommprise the bulk of recent productionand Fed purchases. This has continuedinto the fourthquarter, in large part
because the Fed has made it quite clearthe hurdle needed forthem to beginto taper their asset purchases hasbeen met and
they plan to commence doing so this year, likelyending in mid-2022. Prepayment speeds, particularlyon high coupon
securities, have moderated and are likely to do so evenmore withrates higherso far in the fourth quarterand the typical
seasonal slow down as we approach the winter months.

Critical Accounting Estimates
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Our condensed financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. GAAP requires our management to
sommakenplex and subjective decisions and assessments. Our most critical accounting estimates involve decisions and
assessments which could significantly affect reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. There have been no
changes to our critical accounting estimates as discussed in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

Dec2odier
Capital Expenditures

At September 30, 2021, we had no material commitments for capital expenditures.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At September 30, 2021, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Dividends

In addition to other requirements that must be satisfied to qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividends to our

stockholders of at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the deduction for dividends
paidalidg any net capital gains. REIT taxable income (loss) is computed in accordance with the Code, and can be
grenter less than our financial statement net income (loss) computed in accordance with GAAP. These book to tax
differences primarily relate to the recognition of interest income on RMBS, unrealized gains and losses on RMBS, and

thmortization of losses on derivative instruments that are treated as funding hedges for tax purposes.

We intend to pay regular monthly dividends to our stockholders and have declared the following dividends since the
completion of our IPO.

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 1.395 $ 4,662
2014 2.160 22,643
2015 1.920 38,748
2016 1.680 41,388
2017 1.680 70,717
2018 1.070 55,814
2019 0.960 54,421
2020 0.790 53,570
2021 - YTID 0.650 74,045
Totals $ 12.305 $ 416,008

(1) On October 12, 2021, the Company declared a dividend of $0.065 per share to be paid on November 26, 2021. The effect of this dividend
included in the table above, but is not reflected in the Company’s financial statements as of September 30, 2021.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive in nature. As a result, interest rates and other
inflfiecrour performance far more so than does inflation. Changes in interest rates do not necessarily correlate with
inflation rates or changes in inflation rates. Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP and our
distributions will be determined by our Board of Directors consistent with our obligation to distribute to our
beaskBO¥derf atir REIT taxable income on an annual basis in order to maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, our
activities and balance sheet are measured with reference to historical cost and/or fair market value without considering
inflation.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKETRISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from changes in market factors such as interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The primary market risks that we are exposed to are interest rate
pdpayment risk, spread risk, liquidity risk, extension risk and counterparty credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax policies, domestic
inteamational economic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control.

Changes in the general level of interest rates can affect our net interest income, which is the difference between the
interest income earned on interest-earning assets and the interest expense incurred in connection with our interest-
Hebilitges, by affecting the spread between our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Changes in the
lawelest rates can also affect the rate of prepayments of our securities and the value of the RMBS that constitute our
investment portfolio, which affects our net income, ability to realize gains from the sale of these assets and ability to
bodrthe, amount that we can borrow against these securities.

We may utilize a variety of financial instruments in order to limit the effects of changes in interest rates on our
operations. The principal instruments that we use are futures contracts, interest rate swaps and swaptions. These
instruments are intended to serve as an economic hedge against future interest rate increases on our repurchase
agreement borrowings. Hedging techniques are partly based on assumed levels of prepayments of our Agency RMBS.
prepayments are slower or faster than assumed, the life of the Agency RMBS will be longer or shorter, which would
thdwdéectiveness of any hedging strategies we may use and may cause losses on such transactions. Hedging strategies
involving the use of derivative securities are highly complex and may produce volatile returns. Hedging techniques are
lilsiited by the rules relating to REIT qualification. In order to preserve our REIT status, we may be forced to terminate
hedging transaction at a time when the transaction is most needed.

Our profitability and the value of our investment portfolio (including derivatives used for hedging purposes) may be
adversely affected during any period as a result of changing interest rates, including changes in the forward yield curve.

Our portfolio of PT RMBS is typically comprised of adjustable-rate RMBS (“ARMs”), fixed-rate RMBS and
adjusydivid-rate RMBS. We generally seek to acquire low duration assets that offer high levels of protection from
prepaagents provided that they are reasonably priced by the market. Although the duration of an individual asset can
change as a result of changes in interest rates, we strive to maintain a hedged PT RMBS portfolio with an effective
dfitesiothan 2.0. The stated contractual final maturity of the mortgage loans underlying our portfolio of PT RMBS
pemgeslly to 30 years. However, the effect of prepayments of the underlying mortgage loans tends to shorten the
resihl filogvs from our investments substantially. Prepayments occur for various reasons, including refinancing of
mmteghgng and loan payoffs in connection with home sales, and borrowers paying more than their scheduled loan
payments, which accelerates the amortization of the loans.

The duration of our IO and IT1O portfolios will vary greatly depending on the structural features of the securities.
prepdhilent activity will always affect the cash flows associated with the securities, the interest only nature of IOs may
cause their durations to become extremely negative when prepayments are high, and less negative when prepayments
boer. Prepayments affect the durations of I1Os similarly, but the floating rate nature of the coupon of IIOs (which is
inlatesbly the level of one month LIBOR) causes their price movements, and model duration, to be affected by changes
both prepayments and one month LIBOR, both current and anticipated levels. As a result, the duration of I1O securities
W vary greatly.

Prepayments on the loans underlying our RMBS can alter the timing of the cash flows from the underlying loans to
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As a result, we gauge the interest rate sensitivity of our assets by measuring their effective duration. While modified
theagions the price sensitivity of a bond to movements in interest rates, effective duration captures both the movement
interest rates and the fact that cash flows to a mortgage related security are altered when interest rates move.
Wwheartlinglyntract interest rate on a mortgage loan is substantially above prevailing interest rates in the market, the
dffextiiore of securities collateralized by such loans can be quite low because of expected prepayments.

We face the risk that the market value of our PT RMBS assets will increase or decrease at different rates than that of
our structured RMBS or liabilities, including our hedging instruments. Accordingly, we assess our interest rate risk by
estimating the duration of our assets and the duration of our liabilities. We generally calculate duration using various
fairy models. However, empirical results and various third party models may produce different duration numbers for
thene securities.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the estimated impact on the fair value of our interest rate-sensitive
andihegdgmpersisions as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, assuming rates instantaneously fall 200 bps, fall
100 bps, fall 50 bps, rise 50 bps, rise 100 bps and rise 200 bps, adjusted to reflect the impact of convexity, which is the
measure of the sensitivity of our hedge positions and Agency RMBS’ effective duration to movements in interest rates.

All changes in value in the table below are measured as percentage changes from the investment portfolio value and
net asset value at the base interest rate scenario. The base interest rate scenario assumes interest rates and prepayment
projections as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Actual results could differ materially from estimates, especially in the current market environment. To the extent
theséhastimates or other assumptions do not hold true, which is likely in a period of high price volatility, actual results
{iltHly differ materially from projections and could be larger or smaller than the estimates in the table below. Moreover,
tifferent models were employed in the analysis, materially different projections could result. Lastly, while the table
befllewts the estimated impact of interest rate increases and decreases on a static portfolio, we may from time to time sell
efipur agency securities as a part of the overall management of our investment portfolio.

Interest Rate Sensitiviy

Portfolio
Market Book

Change in Interest Rate Valué¢?® Valué?@

As of September 30, 2021

-200 Basis Points (1.30)% (9.94)%
-100 Basis Points (0.07)% (0.50)%
-50 Basis Points 0.26% 1.99%
+50 Basis Points (1.40)% (10.70)%
+100 Basis Points (2.89)% (22.14)%
+200 Basis Points (7.37)% (56.54)%
As of December 31, 2020

-200 Basis Points 2.43% 21.85%
-100 Basis Points 1.35% 12.08%
-50 Basis Points 0.69% 6.18%
+50 Basis Points (0.90)% (8.03)%
+100 Basis Points (2.39)% (21.42)%
+200 Basis Points (6.60)% (59.22)%

(1) Interest rate sensitivity is derived from models that are dependent on inputs and assumptions provided by third parties as well as by our
Manager, and assumes there are no changes in mortgage spreads and assumes a static portfolio. Actual results could differ materially from
these estimates.

(2) Includes the effect of derivatives and other securities used for hedging purposes.

(3) Estimated dollar change in investment portfolio value expressed as a percent of the total fair value of our investment portfolio as of such

(4) Hstémated dollar change in portfolio value expressed as a percent of stockholders' equity as of such date.
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In addition to changes in interest rates, other factors impact the fair value of our interest rate-sensitive investments,
such as the shape of the yield curve, market expectations as to future interest rate changes and other market conditions.
Accordingly, in the event of changes in actual interest rates, the change in the fair value of our assets would likely differ
thamshown above and such difference might be material and adverse to our stockholders.

Prepayment Risk

Because residential borrowers have the option to prepay their mortgage loans at par at any time, we face the risk
we hidt experience a return of principal on our investments faster than anticipated. Various factors affect the rate at
wibitgage prepayments occur, including changes in the level of and directional trends in housing prices, interest rates,
general economic conditions, loan age and size, loan-to-value ratio, the location of the property and social and
demtigmphid dditionally, changes to government sponsored entity underwriting practices or other governmental
poogdaatso significantly impact prepayment rates or expectations. Generally, prepayments on Agency RMBS increase
geriags of falling mortgage interest rates and decrease during periods of rising mortgage interest rates. However, this
nutyalways be the case. We may reinvest principal repayments at a yield that is lower or higher than the yield on the
impasdment, thus affecting our net interest income by altering the average yield on our assets.

Spread Risk

When the market spread widens between the yield on our Agency RMBS and benchmark interest rates, our net
valdzoobuld decline if the value of our Agency RMBS falls by more than the offsetting fair value increases on our
hestgingents tied to the underlying benchmark interest rates. We refer to this as "spread risk" or "basis risk." The spread
aisgociated with our mortgage assets and the resulting fluctuations in fair value of these securities can occur independent
ohanges in benchmark interest rates and may relate to other factors impacting the mortgage and fixed income markets,
such as actual or anticipated monetary policy actions by the Fed, market liquidity, or changes in required rates of return
different assets. Consequently, while we use futures contracts and interest rate swaps and swaptions to attempt to
pgaiest moves in interest rates, such instruments typically will not protect our net book value against spread risk.

Liquidity Risk

The primary liquidity risk for us arises from financing long-term assets with shorter-term borrowings through
agreemeraasur assets that are pledged to secure repurchase agreements are Agency RMBS and cash. As of September
30, 2021, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $424.1 million and unpledged securities of approximately
fifilfion (not including unsettled securities purchases or securities pledged to us) available to meet margin calls on our
repurchase agreements and derivative contracts, and for other corporate purposes. However, should the value of our
Agency RMBS pledged as collateral or the value of our derivative instruments suddenly decrease, margin calls relating
tair repurchase and derivative agreements could increase, causing an adverse change in our liquidity position. Further,
there is no assurance that we will always be able to renew (or roll) our repurchase agreements. In addition, our
counterparties have the option to increase our haircuts (margin requirements) on the assets we pledge against
vepuechases, thereby reducing the amount that can be borrowed against an asset even if they agree to renew or roll the
repurchase agreement. Significantly higher haircuts can reduce our ability to leverage our portfolio or even force us to
askkts, especially if correlated with asset price declines or faster prepayment rates on our assets.

Extension Risk

The projected weighted average life and the duration (or interest rate sensitivity) of our investments is based on our
Manager's assumptions regarding the rate at which the borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgage loans. In
geadralireecontracts and interest rate swaps and swaptions to help manage our funding cost on our investments in the
event that interest rates rise. These hedging instruments allow us to reduce our funding exposure on the notional
#mdnnatrafment for a specified period of time.
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However, if prepayment rates decrease in a rising interest rate environment, the average life or duration of our
ratefaseeks or the fixed-rate portion of the ARMs or other assets generally extends. This could have a negative impact
onr results from operations, as our hedging instrument expirations are fixed and will, therefore, cover a smaller
pémenfageling exposure on our mortgage assets to the extent that their average lives increase due to slower
fiepaitmatitn may also cause the market value of our Agency RMBS and CMOs collateralized by fixed rate mortgages
bybrid ARMs to decline by more than otherwise would be the case while most of our hedging instruments would not
vegeiveremental offsetting gains. In extreme situations, we may be forced to sell assets to maintain adequate liquidity,
whilthcause us to incur realized losses.

Counterparty Credit Risk

We are exposed to counterparty credit risk relating to potential losses that could be recognized in the event that the
counterparties to our repurchase agreements and derivative contracts fail to perform their obligations under such
agreements. The amount of assets we pledge as collateral in accordance with our agreements varies over time based on
the market value and notional amount of such assets as well as the value of our derivative contracts. In the event of a
default by a counterparty, we may not receive payments provided for under the terms of our agreements and may have
difficulty obtaining our assets pledged as collateral under such agreements. Our credit risk related to certain derivative
transactions is largely mitigated through daily adjustments to collateral pledged based on changes in market value and
limit our counterparties to registered central clearing exchanges and major financial institutions with acceptable credit
ratings, monitoring positions with individual counterparties and adjusting collateral posted as required. However, there
gumeantee our efforts to manage counterparty credit risk will be successful and we could suffer significant losses if
unsuccessful.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report (the “evaluation date”), we carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) and
Eimaficial Officer (the “CFO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
pedimeethinsRade 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded our
dinahedurend procedures, as designed and implemented, were effective as of the evaluation date (1) in ensuring that
information regarding the Company is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our CEO and
biFeyr employees, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and (2) in providing
vesswaabdethat information we must disclose in our periodic reports under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods prescribed by the SEC’s rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

Comtipany’s most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHERINFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not party to any material pending legal proceedings as described in Item 103 of Regulation S-K.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

A description of certain factors that may affect our future results and risk factorsis set forthin our Annual Report on

10-KHorrthe year ended December31, 2020. Asof September 30, 2021, there have been no material changes in our risk
factors fromthose set forthin our Annual Report on Form10-K for the year ended December31, 2020.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On July 29,2015, the Company'sBoard of Directorsauthorized the repurchase of up to 2,000,000shares of the
Company's common stock. On February 8, 2018, the Board of Directorsapproved anincrease inthe stock repurchase
program forup to an additional4,522,822 shares of the Company'scommon stock. The Company did not repurchaseany
shares of its common stock during the three months ended September30, 2021. As of September 30, 2021, the maximum
remaining number of sharesthat may be repurchased under this authorizationis 837,311 shares. Unless modifiedor

bewtileeBoard, the authorizationdoes not expire.

The Company did not have any unregisteredsales of its equity securitiesduring the three months ended September30,
2021.

ITEM 3.DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETYDISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

31.1
31.2
321

32.2

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit3.1 to the Company’s

and incorporated herein by reference).

Certificate of Correction of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed on February 22, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current

and incorporated herein by reference).

Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2062.*

Certification of George H. Haas, IV, Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of George H. Haas, IV, Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL  Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appearin the

Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document.***

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Schema Document ***

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document***

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL  Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document Created***
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL  Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

*  Filed herewith.

**  Furnished herewith.

***  Submitted electronically herewith.

T Management contract or compensatory plan.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly
glagseshort to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Orchid Island Capital, Inc
Registrant

Date:  October 29, 2021 By: /s/ Robert E. Cauley
Robert E. Cauley
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date:  October 29, 2021 By: /s/ George H. Haas, IV
George H. Haas, IV
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and
Director (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert E. Cauley, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.




Date: October 29, 2021

/s/ Robert E. Cauley

Robert E. Cauley
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, George H. Haas, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):




a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 29, 2021

/s/ George H. Haas, IV

George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended September 30,
2021 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the ”Report”), I, Robert E. Cauley, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

October 29, 2021 /s/ Robert E. Cauley
Robert E. Cauley,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended September 30,
2021 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the ”Report™), I, George H. Haas, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

October 29, 2021 /s/ George H. Haas, IV
George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer




